Britain and Sodom and Egypt A Biblical Analysis of Britain's Descent into "Sodom and Egypt" Revelation 11:8



redeeminggod.com/sodom-and-gomorrah/

"The shew of their countenance doth witness against them; and they declare their sin as Sodom, they hide it not. Woe unto their soul! for they have rewarded evil unto themselves" Isaiah 3:9

Alan O'Reilly

CONTENTS

Explanatory Note	1
Amendments to Original Text	2
"Sodom and Egypt" - Now	2
The People of a Book - Then	3
The People of This World - Now	3
Worldly Wickedness, Programmed, Profitable	6
Dire Consequences of Marriage Breakdown	7
Family Breakup, Abortion, Crime and Corruption	9
Drinking, Smoking and Consequences	11
Bogus Equality and Consequences	12
UN Assault on Traditional Families	13
Papal Subversion	14
Papal Media Allies	15
Papal Political Allies	15
The Sins of Sodom	17
Sodomite Danger to Youth	19
God's Judgement on Sodomites - Disease	21
Overseas AIDS – Confirmation of a Condition not a Contagion	22
God's Judgement on Sodomites - "Gay Gene," Gay Violence, Gay Self-Harm	23
Age of Consent – So-Called	24
Sodomite Nazis – Then and Now	25
Sodomite Bible Corrupters	25
Paedophile Priests and C of E Supporters	26
Full Circle – See Explanatory Note	34
Conclusion	36
References	37

Britain and Sodom and Egypt

From *Britain Under Siege* Chapter 8 pp 28-49 *Sodom and Egypt* in the 2000 published edition. See <u>www.amazon.co.uk/Britain-Under-Siege-Alan-OReilly/dp/B002GHG3LA</u> *Britain Under Siege*.

Explanatory Note

This writer has been prompted by the following report *Catholic Church child sexual abuse scandal* 26 February 2019 <u>www.bbc.co.uk/news/world-44209971</u> to readdress his work *Sodom and Egypt* that formed Chapter 8 of his earlier work <u>www.christianwatch.org.uk/</u> *Britain Under Siege*, published originally by *Christian Watch*, update it as far as possible and make it available as a separate study.

The prompting for so doing, Brexit notwithstanding, *Britain and Brexit* <u>www.timefortruth.co.uk/alan-oreilly/</u>, further stems from the continuing parlous state of our nation of Britain. That lamentable state is well described by the prophet Isaiah in words, as the above report highlights, though only in part as will be seen, as applicable to Britain today as they were for ancient Israel.

"Ah sinful nation, a people laden with iniquity, a seed of evildoers, children that are corrupters: they have forsaken the LORD, they have provoked the Holy One of Israel unto anger, they are gone away backward" Isaiah 1:4.

Britain today, as will be seen, is not only the same as ancient Israel but indeed no different from Jerusalem in the End Times **"which spiritually is called Sodom and Egypt"** Revelation 11:8. Much of the original material in this work dates from 20-30 years ago but it remains a truthful historical record of a **"sinful nation, a people laden with iniquity"** who, as the 2019 updates will show, to the moment of speaking **"repented not of their deeds"** Revelation 16:11.

This writer hopes, therefore, that even at this late stage in the Church Age, indeed "the eleventh hour" Matthew 20:6, 9, this work will, even if in a small way, faithfully exemplify the ministry of Levi as the Lord Himself testifies in Malachi 2:6 "The law of truth was in his mouth, and iniquity was not found in his lips: he walked with me in peace and equity, and did turn many away from iniquity."

Amendments to Original Text

Sub-headings inserted into the original work are given *bold* italic text. A *Conclusion* has been inserted.

Update notes inserted into the text are given in normal format in braces [].

Additional citations from *Britain Under Siege* are given in normal format. Citations from other works are given in italic text.

References have been renumbered, updated and amended with additional comment and sub-references as necessary. Web references have been inserted where the item listed is available.

Note that positions held at the time of writing by individuals cited in this work e.g. Richard Harries, the Bishop of Oxford, have not been amended.

"Sodom and Egypt" - Now

"Sodom and Egypt" are names associated in scripture with the murder of the Lord's witnesses and of the Lord Himself. "And their dead bodies shall lie in the street of the great city, which spiritually is called Sodom and Egypt, where also our Lord was crucified" Revelation 11:8. Students of scripture therefore recognise Egypt as representative of the world system, stubbornly opposed to the word of God¹, from which God calls His people OUT, Matthew 2:15, Deuteronomy 4:20, 2 Corinthians 6:17, 18 and upon which His terrible judgement falls. This is the time of "great tribulation" Matthew 24:21 and "the days of vengeance" Luke 21:22. God promises "I will punish the world for their evil, and the wicked for their iniquity: and I will cause the arrogance of the proud to cease, and will lay low the haughtiness of the terrible" Isaiah 13:11.

Sodom is the epitome, or PIT, of fornication and perversion, so vile it "found no place of repentance" Hebrews 12:17 [2019 Update: like "Capernaum...brought down to hell" Matthew 11:23].

"Even as Sodom and Gomorrha, and the cities about them in like manner, giving themselves over to fornication, and going after strange flesh, are set forth for an example, suffering the vengeance of eternal fire" Jude 7.

The People of a Book - Then

It has been said that during the reign of Elizabeth 1, the nation of England *became the people of a Book - and that Book the Bible*². Despite the political and social upheavals of the 17th century, the English people remained faithful to the Book and that Book was the Holy Bible, the Authorised Version of 1611, which displaced all others. None other than Bernard Shaw³ said this. *The Bible means the translation authorised by King James the First. To this day the common human Britisher or citizen of the United States of North America accepts and worships it as a single book by a single author, the book being the Book of Books and the author being God.* Alexander McClure writes⁴ Its [the AV1611] origin and history so strongly commended it, that it speedily came into general use as the standard version, by the common consent of the English people; and required no act of parliament nor royal proclamation to establish its authority.

The People of This World - Now

Sadly, the people of *that Book* are now the people of this *world* and must face the judgement of **"Sodom and Egypt"**. The historian G. H. Pember⁵, whose work was first published in 1876, has summarised the traits of worldliness, which brought down the judgement of God, with the great flood in the time of Noah, Genesis 6-8.

- 1. A tendency to worship God as Elohim, that is, merely as the Creator and Benefactor, and not as Jehovah the covenant God of mercy, dealing with transgressors who are appointed to destruction, and finding a ransom for them.
- 2. An undue prominence of the female sex, and a disregard of the primal law of marriage.
- 3. A rapid progress in the mechanical arts, and the consequent invention of many devices whereby the hardships of the curse [Genesis 3:17] were mitigated, and life was rendered more easy and indulgent. Also a proficiency in the fine arts, which captivated the minds of men, and helped to induce an entire oblivion of God.
- 4. An alliance between the nominal Church and the World, which speedily resulted in a complete amalgamation.
- 5. A vast increase of population.
- 6. The rejection of the preaching of Enoch (and Noah), whose warnings thus became a savour of death unto the world, and hardened men beyond recovery.

7. The appearance upon earth of beings from the Principality of the Air, and their unlawful intercourse with the human race.

These causes concurred to envelop the world in a sensuous mist which no ray of truth could penetrate. They brought about a total forgetfulness of God and disregard of His will; and thus, by removing the great Centre Who alone is able to attract men from themselves, rendered the dwellers upon earth so selfish and unscrupulous that the world was presently filled with lewdness, injustice, oppression and bloodshed.

"And as it was in the days of Noe, so shall it be also in the days of the Son of Man...Likewise also as it was in the days of Lot" Luke 17:26-28.

The comments made earlier clearly match several of Pember's summary points. Point 1 above corresponds to key elements of the New Age Movement. Point 3 above relates directly to the satanic strategy of using ungodly music to distract the mind and heart from God. Technological advances have greatly facilitated access to Satan's music and all other aspects of the anti-Christian broadcast and published media.

"Be not deceived: evil communications corrupt good manners" 1 Corinthians 15:33.

Point 4 is exemplified by the essentially political aspirations of Catholicism and Islam to take complete control of all nations in which they are resident. Point 6 corresponds to the departure of this nation from belief in the Book, which made it great. Point 7 is the terminus of global integration, the goal to which Catholicism, Marxism, Islam, the New Age and the imposition of essentially African music and morals upon the more advanced Caucasian nations, must converge. Integration, by every means, cultural, political, racial, religious, social, is Satan's strategy for weakening the nations so that they will join together for mutual support, neglect the true God and accept Satan incarnate as their world ruler. The scriptures describe Satan's removal of **"the bounds of the people"** in order to encourage global integration in preparation for his emergence as earth's visible overlord. Note that he is accompanied by *beings from the Principality of the Air*, who will no doubt act as his viceroys.

"And the great dragon was cast out, that old serpent, called the Devil and Satan, which deceiveth the whole world: he was cast out into the earth, and his angels were cast out with him" Revelation 12:9.

"How art thou fallen from heaven, O Lucifer, son of the morning! How art thou cast down to the ground, which didst weaken the nations" Isaiah 14:12.

"For he saith, By the strength of my hand I have done it, and by my wisdom; for I am prudent: and I have removed the bounds of the people, and have robbed their treasuries, and I have put down the inhabitants like a valiant man" Isaiah 10:13.

"Thou sawest iron mixed with miry clay, they shall mingle themselves with the seed of men: but they shall not cleave one to another, even as iron is not mixed with clay" Daniel 2:43. This verse warns of satanic, *unlawful intercourse with the human race*.

"Jesus answered them, Have not I chosen you twelve, and one of you is a devil? He spake of Judas Iscariot the son of Simon: for he it was that should betray him, being one of the twelve" John 6:70, 71. Note that Judas, "the son of perdition" John 17:12, 2 Thessalonians 2:3, a half-breed Jew from Moab⁶, is actually "a devil".

"God that made the world and all things therein...hath made of one blood all nations of men for to dwell on all the face of the earth, and hath determined the times before appointed, and the bounds of their habitation; that they should seek the Lord" Acts 17:24-27. Satan uses global integration to turn men from the Lord.

"And they worshipped the beast, saying, Who is like unto the beast? Who is able to make war with him?...And it was given unto him to make war with the saints, and to overcome them: and power was given him over all kindreds, and tongues, and nations" Revelation 13:4-7. "The world of the ungodly" [2019 Update: 2 Peter 2:5] readily submits to Satan.

"And the ten horns which thou sawest are ten kings, which have received no kingdom as yet; but receive power as kings one hour with the beast" Revelation 17:12. Mercifully, the triumph of Satan and his principalities is short lived.

"And the angels which kept not their first estate, but left their own habitation, he hath reserved in everlasting chains under darkness unto the judgment of the great day" Jude 6. Past or future, God's judgement is certain, 2 Peter 2:4, 5, Ecclesiastes 1:9!

Worldly Wickedness, Programmed, Profitable

Points 2 and 5 of Pember's summary are addressed in what follows. Valerie Riches has described how Thomas Malthus proposed in 1798 that the population would always increase at a faster rate than the food supply, and that the result would be an increase in poverty, misery and vice⁷. Mrs Riches then shows how Malthus' thesis, which has never been substantiated, provided a basis for Charles Darwin's belief that natural selection in evolution could be assisted by culling the "inferior" members of the population. Mrs Riches describes how these perverted ideas led in turn to the genocide practised by the Nazi regime and to the world-wide propagation of sex education up to the present time. The tools of sex education, abortion, contraception, perversion, sterilisation, have but one aim, centralised population control for the whole world, consistent of course with the aims of the satanic organisations listed earlier. So that every individual can be controlled by "the state", the traditional family must be abolished and all practices contrary to traditional marriage and fidelity must be encouraged, such as cohabitation, easy divorce, fornication, sodomy and even paedophilia. Mrs Riches has reported the devastating results for this country.

The British public is repeatedly told that nationwide sex education and the provision of contraceptives to teenagers are justified by the need to bring down the number of unwanted pregnancies. The whole exercise has been a colossal failure. Illegitimate maternities and abortions in teenagers continue to rise. STDs are spreading rapidly and acquiring new and virulent forms like herpes and AIDS [2019 Update: See remarks later on the AIDS condition]. Cancer of the cervix is now reaching epidemic proportions in young women, amongst whom it was until recently almost unknown. There is overwhelming evidence that, contrary to what you might expect, the availability of contraception leads to an increase in the abortion rate. Research from the United States substantiates the fact that the more contraceptive programmes are aimed at the young, the more pregnancies, abortions, promiscuity, VD and cancer of the cervix result.

Dr Peter S. Ruckman, of the Pensacola Bible Institute, Florida, USA, has provided good insight into why advice on "safer sex" continues to be foisted on the American and British public, in spite of the results described above. He writes⁸:

About fifteen years ago (1970), SEICUS (Sex Education and Information Council of the United States) tried to ram all their raw pornography through the public schools here in Pensacola. The preachers got together, and when they saw what was coming, they elected someone to go downtown to fight with the educators, lawyers and doctors. They dumped it off on "Ruckman"...

After three months of meetings, Dr Ruckman asked "You gave us the classic case of California's SEICUS program for a guideline-specifically Anaheim, I believe it was. Well, after five years of sex education at Anaheim, what were the results? Did it increase the VD rate and the rate of illegitimate births, or did it decrease it?" He received this answer.

"The purpose behind sex education is not necessarily to decrease the VD rate or to stop unmarried pregnancies. The important thing is that children have access to the facts so that they can evaluate their own lifestyles and make their own decisions after their values have been clarified."

Dr Ruckman eventually discovered the *real* purpose of the sex education programme.

The woman who recommended all of that pornographic slop was getting a "cut" off of the royalties from the books sold if they were adopted by the Board of Education. She was nothing but a cheap opportunist looking for a fast buck (1 Timothy 6:10 **"For the love of money is the root of all evil..."**), and her highest motive in "liberating" young people was to stuff her purse.

Dr Ruckman's findings independently match those of *Family and Youth Concern*⁹.

The commercial arm of the Family Planning Association continues to increase its profits year by year. In the year 1993/4 the sum of £382,000 was covenanted by FPS, Family Planning Sales Ltd., to the association for its 'charitable' activities...As the Monopolies' Commission report on contraceptive sheaths said in 1975, the FPA's educational activities "widen the market for contraceptives."

Dire Consequences of Marriage Breakdown

Successive governments have encouraged "conventional" fornication among teenagers by condoning an "age of consent" for girls at 16. Dr Margaret White sums up the appalling results¹⁰. The latest figures (1998) for teenage pregnancy have been published, and are at their highest level for 11 years...there is a serious increase in sexually transmitted diseases leading in many cases to permanent health damage. We also have a breakdown in marriage with a soaring divorce rate and an increase in births outside marriage and the incidence of battered babies. These of course go together as in the majority of cases the abused child is living with the mother and a man who is not his or her biological father. Illegitimate births have risen from less than

5% of all live births around the turn of the century to 35% now¹¹, aggravating the problems which Dr White describes.

Robert Whelan has shown¹² that a child is 20 times more likely to suffer serious abuse in a household with 2 natural parents cohabiting than in a traditional family with 2 natural parents married. The abuse factor rises to *30 times* for a household consisting of the natural mother and a cohabitee. Stephen Green¹³ describes a two year survey carried out in the early 1990's which found that 77% of all serious abuse of children whose mean age was four years, occurred in just 16% of homes. These households were essentially non traditional and typically consisted of single mother living with an unrelated male. Mr Green's figures yield an abuse factor of approximately 18, compared to Mr Whelan's figure of 30. Although the agreement is not exact, the same trend is evident. Marital breakdown is extremely bad for children. Studies on divorce provide further evidence.

Dr Richards of Cambridge University states with respect to children whose parents are facing divorce¹⁴ They almost always say they only want one thing that their parents should stay together. George Brown¹⁵ cites a study in the USA which found that five years after the divorce 37% of the children were clinically depressed displaying a wide range of behavioural problems. Mr Green¹⁶ states that A study published by the Social Affairs Unit shows that although parents squabbling and fighting but staying together may damage children emotionally, a divorce on the other hand always [2019 Update: Mr Green's emphasis] does. Studies show that where the mother is widowed, the children paradoxically adjust better than where the mother is divorced, at least if the (widowed) mother does not remarry.

A Mori poll commissioned by the Lord Chancellor's Department during the passage of the Family Law Bill showed that 60% of the population did not agree with no fault divorce¹⁷. Successive Governments arrogantly persisted with the Bill until its pilot schemes on "mediation" were seen to be faltering¹⁸. However, the damage is done. Divorce has risen from about 5,000 per year in the early part of this century to 175,000 per year now, a rate of one divorce for every two marriages¹⁹.

In addition to divorce, cohabitation has exacerbated the problem of family break-up. The proportion of couples who cohabit before marriage has risen from 4% in 1966 to almost 70% now²⁰ and almost 60% of individuals between the ages of 25-29 are now likely to have experienced cohabitation²¹. Cohabiting couples are four times more likely to split up than married couples and from 33% to 48% more likely to divorce than couples who did not cohabit before marriage^{22, 23}. The same authors show that cohabiting women are two

to five times more likely to suffer domestic violence than married women are. George Brown²⁴ reveals that the median length of cohabitation relationships is 18-20 months and concludes that they are not characterised by loving parenthood but rather by violence and instability.

"Marriage is honourable in all, and the bed undefiled: but whoremongers and adulterers God will judge" Hebrews 13:4.

Family Breakup, Abortion, Crime and Corruption

The unhappy results of family break-up are further reflected in the rising tide of abortions, which are likely to exceed five million by the year 2000^{25} [2019 Update: The total number of abortions for the UK stands at 8.7 million by March 2018. See Reference 25]. American writer Josh McDowell²⁶ reports that 42.6% of women who underwent abortions suffered damage to reproductive organs, 16% suffered severe emotional and psychiatric problems and 96% in retrospect, regarded abortion as the taking of life or as murder.

Rising crime and corruption within the community inevitably follow family break-up. Christian Voice²⁷ has shown that rates for homicide have risen steadily from 300 per year in England and Wales in the 1950's to 700 per year in the 1990's. Rapes recorded by the police have risen from about 100 per year in the 1930's to 5,000 per year in the 1990's. There were 30,000 seizures of illegal drugs in 1985 and 115,000 in 1995 and Christian Voice describes the rise in drug abuse as *relentless*. There were 80,000 robberies in England and Wales in 1996, a 16 fold increase in 25 years [2019 Update: See Reference 27 for the latest figures on major crime rates. They fluctuate but remain serious, even if said to be *low volume* by official sources]. The rate for sexually transmitted diseases stood at 100,000 per year in the 1940's and is now 800,000 per year, including of course the deadly [2019 Update: condition. See remarks under Reference 27] AIDS, which had claimed 3,400 victims in the UK alone, as early as 1991²⁸. According to the Christian Institute's 1999 booklet Bankrolling Gay Proselytism²⁹ AIDS attributed deaths peaked at 1679 in 1994 and have since been reduced to 500-600 per year by new drugs that delay the onset of the [2019 Update: condition] but this advance has been gained at enormously disproportionate expense to others. £160 million was spent in 1994 on AIDS research, compared to £9.9 million spent on heart disease, which killed 197,721 sufferers in 1994. Moreover, Dr Trevor Stammers³⁰ has shown that overall the latest figures on STDs indicate that the rates of infection are not reducing and that in the UK some 580,000 people receive treatment for a new STD every year. He states that such infections occur principally in serial or multiple sexual relationships. Increased incidence among women of serious and even fatal complications, such as pelvic inflammatory disease and cancer of the cervix, are strongly linked to such relationships. "Neither repented they of their murders, nor of their sorceries, nor of their fornication, nor of their thefts" Revelation 9:21.

Sociologist Norman Dennis³¹ has summarised public perception of much of this social upheaval. He describes how ordinary folk *depended upon their crude general impression from everyday life...they witnessed metal shutters gradually being installed in all shopping centres; they saw high fences being erected for the first time around vandalized and defaced churches. Among them there remained a wide consensus that civility in England and Wales had significantly declined in the previous thirty years. Their own experience, that is, corresponded to the statistical records.*

Strangely, this upheaval has taken place over a period of time when Britain has been fairly prosperous, politically stable and its population fairly static. Norman Dennis³² describes how readily any unemployed youth in Sunderland. a "deprived" area, has access to a wide range of benefits with respect to education, housing, healthcare, sporting and recreational facilities. However, break-up of the traditional family continues to exact a heavy toll in warping the development of children and young people, who are both victims and perpetrators of the rising tide of social evil. The Maranatha Community has carried out a very thorough study on children in Britain and overseas³³. The document confirms the statistics given above and states we are robbing [chil*dren*] of their dignity and innocence. We are exploiting them. We are forcing adult ideas on them. We are abusing and confusing them. We are depriving them of faith and a moral framework for life. We are depriving them of love and security. We are polluting their minds and teaching them vulgarity in language and lifestyle. We are densensitizing them to violence. We are poisoning them with squalid and degrading sexual images. We are implanting into our children wrong standards-greed, lust, violence, dirtiness, bad manners, lack of consideration for others and lack of respect for themselves. Detailed chapters follow on the effects on the young of abortion, family breakup, drug and alcohol abuse, pornography, moral and spiritual corruption. The booklet should be read and studied carefully by every concerned parent.

Drinking, Smoking and Consequences

Two sets of *adult ideas* discussed by the booklet for their adverse effect on children and the family and which bear further mention are the popular pastimes of drinking and smoking. Peter Masters³⁴ reveals that 28,000 people die each year through alcohol related causes and up to 1,000,000 suffer serious harm. Alcohol is the main factor in 1,000 child deaths each year, [2019 Update: 15% of all road deaths. See remarks under Reference 35], half the deaths of drivers under 25^{35} , half of *all* murders and half of *all* child abuse and wife batterings. Dr Dennis Llovd cites the *Mail Reporter*, which states that almost one million men and 190,000 women get drunk at least once a week³⁶. Men aged 16-24 are the worst offenders, with four out of five saying they have more than four pints in a session. More than 50% of men and 27% of women admit having been drunk at least once in the last year. More than one in four confessed to having been drunk at least once a week. The survey of more than 1600 people was conducted by the Health Education Authority which claimed the findings show there is a dangerous level of binge drinking in Britain. (I could have told them that 50 years ago - Dr Lloyd.)

"Who hath woe? who hath sorrow? who hath contentions? who hath babbling? who hath wounds without cause? who hath redness of the eyes? They that tarry long at the wine; they that go to seek mixed wine" Proverbs 23:29, 30.

Maranatha state³⁷ for generations Britain has suffered economically and socially because of tobacco and alcohol problems which have scarred our national life. With the many social and media pressures, and the failure of adults to set an example, we are positively encouraging our children to inherit these problems. By the age of 15 years, 24% of all girls smoke regularly. 17% of boys smoke an average of 52 cigarettes per week (Health Education Survey 1989). It is very easy for very young children to obtain cigarettes. Over a million people in the United Kingdom die through smoking each decade (The Health Education Authority Publication 1991 'Smoking Epidemic').

Broadcaster Michael Buerk³⁸ acknowledges that there are 120,000 smoking related deaths each year in Britain, obviously far exceeding even the huge toll stemming directly from alcohol consumption.

[2019 Update: The annual death toll from smoking has providentially decreased to less than 80,000 now though it remains an even worse scourge than alcohol]

"Behold, all ye that kindle a fire, that compass yourselves about with sparks: walk in the light of your fire, and in the sparks that ye have kindled. This shall ye have of mine hand; ye shall lie down in sorrow" Isaiah 50:11.

Even a section of the news media³⁹ appears willing to acknowledge the overall findings of the Maranatha Community. Health Services Correspondent David Fletcher cites the report *Psychosocial Problems of Young People*, by Sir Michael Rutter, Professor of Child and Adolescent Psychiatry at the Institute of Psychiatry, London and Professor David Smith, Professor of Criminology at Edinburgh University. He states that the report shows that *the new world of sex, drugs and rock 'n' roll, coupled with rising expectations, have caused stresses, which previous, more restricted generations, never had to worry about. Unemployment and worsening living conditions among some sections of society cannot alone be blamed for rising levels of crime, suicide and drug abuse because the rises were most marked when living standards were improving. The final chapters...conclude, broadly, that breakdown in family life is more likely than unemployment to be the cause of the increase in psychosocial disorders among young people.*

Bogus Equality and Consequences

Nevertheless, efforts continue to subvert the family further and promote "equality" of the sexes in accordance with Pember's summary point 2 above. One major aspect is with respect to employment. Stephen Green has written⁴⁰, with emphases.

The proportion of men (aged 16-64) who are economically inactive has more than doubled (from 1951-1993) from 12.4% to 28.1%...The jobless rate amongst 18/24 year/olds has doubled in the 5 years since 1990. Amongst women, the proportion economically active has risen from 34.7% to 52.6% over the same period. The greatest rise, from around 30% to over 70% has been amongst women aged between 25/34, in other words, women in their child bearing years...It is not necessary to be an anthropologist to see that a population of over-employed women and under-employed men is a recipe for catastrophe. Nor is it necessary to be a child psychologist to know that maternal care is best for a child.

Long ago God warned the nation of Israel to follow His Book. "If thou wilt not observe to do all the words of this law that are written in this book, that thou mayest fear this glorious and fearful name, THE LORD THY GOD; Then the Lord will make thy plagues wonderful, and the plagues of thy seed, even great plagues, and of long continuance, and sore sicknesses, and of long continuance. Moreover he will upon thee all the diseases of Egypt, which thou wast afraid of; and they shall cleave unto **thee**" Deuteronomy 28:58-60. Israel neglected to follow the BOOK and reaped the consequences. Britain is doing the same. She is gravely afflicted with "**the diseases of Egypt**", spiritual, moral and sociological as well as physical. Destruction of the family and in turn the nation, in the interests of centralised population control is proceeding as Mrs Riches has described⁴¹. See discussion earlier. In addition to the one-world groups already mentioned and no doubt linked with them, Britain is also under attack from the one-world politicians of the United Nations and the one-world businessmen of groups such as the Bilderbergers and international banking houses.

UN Assault on Traditional Families

The UN is committed to destroying the traditional family. *Christian Voice* has stated⁴²:

The UN Convention on the Rights of the Child was ratified by the UK in December 1991, with minor reservations, and has the force of an international treaty. It takes precedence over UK law, and under its article 4 we are obliged to pass laws to implement it. If enforced, it will pass the sovereignty of the United Kingdom, in every area touched by the Convention, to a committee of 10 child rights activists-elected by the UN.

The Government's present position is that, especially with the passing of the Children Act 1989, the UK complies with the Convention. The Children Act 1989 also overturned centuries of Christian tradition in British Law by boldly declaring **"The rule of law that a father is the natural guardian of his legit-imate child is abolished"** Children Act 1989 S.2 (4).

Prominent British politicians including [2019 Update: former] Prime Minister Tony Blair, Sir Leon Brittan, Lord Carrington, Kenneth Clarke MP, Sir Edward Heath, Lord Howe, the Rt Hon Douglas Hurd, Lord George Robertson and the late Lord Whitelaw have all attended Bilderberger meetings^{43, 44, 45, 46}. They appear to have agreed with the one-world aims of the Bilderbergers. Roy Livesey has discussed these in detail, together with the associations between the various political and religious groups striving for global control under their overall leader, Satan the Devil, who is even now "the **prince of this world**" John 12:31, 14:30. No discussion of world politics and religion is complete without reference to Satan, who has "his seat", ex cathedra, in Rome, Revelation 13:2, 17:3 [2019 Update: The politicians listed above have passed from the scene but their influence via "the prince of this world" remains, for now]. The Prince of Wales and Lady Thatcher, while Prime Minister, have also met with the Bilderbergers. When Lady Thatcher objected to the one-world aims of this group, members of her own cabinet

ousted her from power. I believe this to have been God's judgement on Margaret Thatcher for her betrayal of Rhodesia into the hands of black Marxists by means of the Lancaster House Conference and her betrayal of Ulster into the hands of Catholic Nationalists, by means of the Anglo-Irish Agreement of 1985:

Papal Subversion

See

The Great Betrayal, by Ian Smith, Blake Publishing Ltd., 1997 [www.amazon.co.uk/Great-Betrayal-Memoirs-Douglas-Smith/dp/1857821769 2019 Update]

Why Unionists Say No, by Peter Smith, The Joint Unionist Working Party, p 6

[www.amazon.co.uk/Why-Unionists-Say-Peter-Smith/dp/B0006EMJEU 2019 Update]

[From *Britain Under Siege* pp 7-8 2019 Update]

[www.scribd.com/document/59028477/Albert-Close-Jesuit-Plots-From-Elizabethan-To-Modern-Times Jesuit Plots from Elizabethan to Modern Times, Albert Close, The Protestant Truth Society 2019 Update].

Joanna Bogle, contributor to Family Education Trust's informative work *Feminism vs. Mankind...*has stated⁴⁷... ...*Has our Church not reached the very position that generations of loyal Catholics worked and prayed to achieve?... the work of generations of loyal Catholics* included the Gunpowder Plot of November 1605, to murder James 1 just after he had sanctioned the translation of the AV1611. *Loyal Catholics*, including Patrick Magee, released after the "Good Friday Agreement", carried out the Brighton bombing in October 1984 in which five innocent people were killed. *Loyal Catholics* are mainly responsible for the more than 3,000 deaths by terrorism in Ulster since the present "troubles" began in 1968 [2019 Update: *The Province of Terror*, Intelligence Digest, 1990. Source no longer available] and continue to be the major obstacle by far to a genuine resolution of those "troubles", despite the boasts of New Labour [2019 Update: For New Labour read current Labour throughout this work]. See any issue of *The Burning Bush*, by Rev Ivan Foster.

[<u>www.ivanfoster.net/?page_id=1420</u>. The newsletter is no longer in publication but Pastor Foster's site is still active. Total deaths during 'The Troubles' were 3, 500 <u>en.wikipedia.org/wiki/The_Troubles</u> *The Troubles* 2019 Update]

Papal Media Allies

Rupert Murdoch is a close friend of the Bilderbergers and Mr Blair. His attacks on the family and in turn this nation via page 3 pornography and other endeavours have been rewarded and once again reveal the sinister links between the globalist conspirators. Dr Lloyd⁴⁸ cites *The Mail*, 4/1/98. Although not a catholic, media baron Rupert Murdoch is to receive a knighthood from the pope and will be entitled to style himself a Knight of the Order of St Gregory. Murdoch has made large donations to Catholic institutions. Battle Cry November/December 1999 reports that Los Angeles Cardinal Mahoney anointed Murdoch in January 1999, after he donated \$10,000,000 to the church.

"For thou hast said in thine heart, I will ascend into heaven, I will exalt my throne above the stars of God...I will ascend above the heights of the clouds; I will be like the most High" Isaiah 14:13, 14.

"For the love of money is the root of all evil" 1 Timothy 6:10.

"By the multitude of thy merchandise they have filled the midst of thee with violence and thou hast sinned" Ezekiel 28:16.

"And all the world wondered after the beast. And they worshipped the dragon which gave power unto the beast; and they worshipped the beast saying, Who is like unto the beast? who is able to make war with him?" Revelation 13:3, 4.

Papal Political Allies

Britain is now so weak through the manifold "diseases of Egypt" that a terrorist can now dictate terms directly to Her Majesty's Government. Dr Lloyd⁴⁹ cites the *New Zealand Herald*, 11/12/97. *Belfast-the leader of the IRA political wing, Sinn Fein, said yesterday that he would tell the Prime Minister Tony Blair at a historic meeting this week that it was time for Britain to pull out of Protestant Northern Ireland and let it unite with Catholic Ireland. On Monday Mr Adams - one of the chief negotiators at the peace talks - praised Mr Blair's understanding of the Irish situation. (I bet he did, for Blair wants to please his wife's pope -* Dr Lloyd). The betrayal of Ulster has accelerated since then. [2019 Update: Blair converted to Catholicism in December 2007. See Reference 49, Telegraph article]

Dr Lloyd⁵⁰ reveals what may yet be Britain's last line of defence, if any defenders are prepared to man it. He cites Peter Hitchens, *International Express* October 1998. *Too much democracy can destroy freedom. Nobody should ever forget that Adolf Hitler (a Roman Catholic who has never been*

disfellowshipped from his "church" - Dr Lloyd) came to power by purely democratic means and persuaded the German parliament to cut its own throat. That is why Tony Blair's (another pope's puppet trying to bring Britain to its knees for Rome - Dr Llovd) attack on the House of Lords is not just destructive and ill thought out, but dangerous too. There are plenty of good arguments in favour of the House of Lords staving as it is and it is a sign of the Tories' current gutless cowardice that they have decided to retreat (with the great help of Roman Catholics among them - Dr Lloyd) without a proper fight. There is one argument that is not just good, but crucial. It rests on Section 2 of the 1911 Parliament Act. (Rome wants to delete such acts that prevent her taking over the UK - Dr Lloyd) which left the key to dictatorship in the hands of the Lords, because they were seen as safe guardians of freedom (exactly). It is this: The House of Commons cannot vote to extend its life beyond five years, unless the Lords agree. It is one of the central clauses of our Constitution, a guarantee against arbitrary power. If the Lords and the *Commons both became Chambers of Toadies, doing the bidding of Downing* Street, the Prime Minister will quietly gain the sort of power that dictators yearn for (Like all the Roman Catholic countries whose dictators do the Pope's bidding for him. The pope will be ruler and complete rule giver. I have said it before and will say it again. Blair is a puppet of the pope. There are many Tories as well as Labour members of the Government who are Roman Catholics, who are traitors to their country in being faithful to the Pope of Rome. It is the House of Lords and the Monarchy that is in the way of *Rome taking over the United Kingdom completely* - Dr Lloyd.) On November 11th 1999, 666 (!) hereditary peers were ejected from the Lords, leaving only 92, news.bbc.co.uk/, 11/11/99.

[news.bbc.co.uk/onthisday/hi/dates/stories/novem-

ber/24/newsid_4007000/4007601.stm 1998: Queen's speech spells end for peers. 2019 Update: 90 hereditary peers now remain]

"And I sought for a man among them, that should make up the hedge, and stand in the gap before me for the land, that I should not destroy it: but I found none" Ezekiel 22:30.

Will this be Britain's epitaph? As well as being afflicted with the diseases of Egypt, Britain has also committed the sins of Sodom. The first mention of the word **"sinner"** in the Bible is in association with Sodom.

The Sins of Sodom

"But the men of Sodom were wicked and sinners before the Lord exceedingly" Genesis 13:13.

"Thou shalt not lie with mankind, as with womenkind: it is abomination" Leviticus 18:22.

"For this cause God gave them up unto vile affections: for even their women did change the natural use into that which is against nature: And likewise also the men, leaving the natural use of the woman, burned in their lust one toward another; men with men working that which is unseemly, and receiving in themselves that recompense of their error which was meet" Romans 1:26-27.

These references and Jude 7 [2019 Update: "Even as Sodom and Gomorrha, and the cities about them in like manner, giving themselves over to fornication, and going after strange flesh, are set forth for an example, suffering the vengeance of eternal fire"] describe God's abhorrence of the sins of Sodom and His judgement on them, both here and hereafter. Jude 7 also indicates that tolerance of fornication leads to tolerance of sodomy. Toleration of sodomy has led in the past few decades to a weakening of laws against this evil practice which has allowed sodomites to develop into an aggressive force for helping to destroy the traditional family. Stephen Green⁵¹ has reprinted a summary of the sodomite agenda, as penned by activist Michael Swift in 1987, now dead, from AIDS.

We shall sodomize your sons, emblems of your feeble masculinity, of your shallow dreams and vulgar lies. The family unit-spawning ground of lies, betrayals, mediocrity, hypocrisy and violence-will be abolished. The family unit which only dampens imagination and curbs free will, must be eliminated.

The flawed studies of Kinsey, published about 50 years ago in the USA are the basis for the oft-repeated notion that 10% of the population are practising sodomites. The real figure is much lower. A survey carried out by the US Government in 1989 showed that practising sodomites are actually less than 2% of the population. A British survey carried out by the Wellcome Trust in 1992 found a similar figure, of less than 1.5% and concluded that this result was *consistent with those from other recent studies in Europe and the United States*^{52, 53}. However, the political influence of sodomites is far out of proportion with their numbers. The Commons has voted twice to reduce the age of consent for practising sodomites to 16, in June 1998 and January 1999. Each time, the Lords, led by Baroness Young voted against the Commons, in July 1998 and April 1999. After the July 1998 vote, sodomites harassed the

peers with shouts of "fascist scum", "parasites" and "your days are numbered"⁵⁴, exactly after the manner of the original sodomites, Genesis 19:9 [2019 Update: "And they said, Stand back. And they said again, This one fellow came in to sojourn, and he will needs be a judge: now will we deal worse with thee, than with them. And they pressed sore upon the man, even Lot, and came near to break the door"]. Nevertheless, sodomites continue to be especially feted by the present government [2019 Update: They still are, see Wikipedia article below]. This was shown by the attendance of Dr Jack Cunningham MP, Mo Mowlam MP and practising sodomite Chris Smith MP at the dinner for the sodomites' rights group, Stonewall, sponsored by the National Westminster Bank at the Savoy Hotel on May 20th 1999⁵⁵.

[en.wikipedia.org/wiki/LGBT_rights in the United Kingdom LGBT rights in the United Kingdom. 2019 Update: The so-called age of consent is now universally 16 for the UK and sodomite 'marriage' has been legalised]

Such patronage is not surprising. Rev Ivan Foster has stated⁵⁶ *MPs such as Edwina Curry have been campaigning for the lowering of the age of consent for sodomites from 21 to 16. Sodomy ought not to be legal at any age. It is as morally corruptive, if not more so, as murder. It is a vile and wicked abnormality that has ever been the mark of a society depraved and debauched by religious apostasy. The departure from God's word by the churches of thenation has led to God giving men up to their evil appetites*, Romans 1:26-27 [2019 Update: "For this cause God gave them up unto vile affections: for even their women did change the natural use into that which is against*nature:* And likewise also the men, leaving the natural use of the woman, burned in their lust one toward another; men with men working that which is unseemly, and receiving in themselves that recompence of their error which was meet"]. He states further⁵⁷ *In policy and practice we have the most wicked bunch of leaders that have ever blighted this United King-dom.*

[2019 Update: We still have. See the Wikipedia article above and the current betrayal of Brexit. <u>www.theguardian.com/politics/2019/mar/14/mps-vote-by-majority-of-210-to-extend-article-50-and-delay-brexit</u> *MPs vote by a majority of 211 to extend article 50 and delay Brexit*]

Admitted New Labour sex perverts include Chris Smith, Heritage Secretary, Angela Eagle, Environment Minister, Stephen Twigg, Ben Bradshaw MP⁵⁸, Ron Davies, former Welsh Secretary of State, Peter Mandelson, former Secretary of State for Northern Ireland⁵⁹, Nick Brown, Agriculture Minister⁶⁰ [2019 Update: Having met and spoken with Mr Brown on a separate issue since the compilation of this material this writer would in fairness state that Mr Bown is a sincere and able politician genuinely concerned for the welfare of constituents. The scriptural verdict must nevertheless stand]. It is ironic that Mr Mandelson should have been forced to resign from the Cabinet for an unprecedented second time, for duplicity in public life. He first departed ministerial office in 1998, for the loan of £373,000 that he had received secretly from then fellow minister, Geoffrey Robinson.

[www.theguardian.com/world/2000/oct/17/qanda.mandelson The Mandelson loan scandal 2019 Update]

His second departure was on January 24th 2001, for his complicity in the passport application of controversial Indian billionaire Srichand Hinduja.

See <u>news.bbc.co.uk/</u>, 24/01/01.

[2019 Update: <u>news.bbc.co.uk/1/hi/world/south_asia/1134819.stm</u> *Mandel-son resigns over Hinduja affair*]

However, the Conservatives are not blameless with respect to support for sodomites. William Hague has openly supported TORCHE, Tory Campaign for Homosexual Equality⁶¹ and made no mention of withdrawing this support in his address to the Conservative Christian Fellowship on 16th November 1998⁶².

Sodomite Danger to Youth

The danger posed by sodomites with political power to propagate their lifestyles is particularly serious for the young. Dr Trevor Stammers of St George's Hospital Medical School has stated that if the new age of consent law is passed [2019 Update: See Wikipedia site above on LGBT rights, so called], 16 years olds will be exposed to a culture where alcohol and drug use is 7 times higher than in the general population⁶³. The excellent and detailed report by the Christian Institute Homosexuality and Young People⁶⁴ strongly supports Dr Stammers' observation. This document should also be read and studied by every concerned parent [2019 Update: Like The Maranatha Community Booklet What On Earth Are We Doing To Our Children? See Reference 33]. Lynette Burrows' book 65 is another such document, the earlier remarks about Mrs Burrows Catholicism notwithstanding [2019 Update: From Britain Under Siege pp 7-8]. Lynette Burrows [is the] author of The Fight for the Family, another excellent publication by Family Education Trust. There is no doubt about the sincerity of these courageous individuals and the vital importance of their work for traditional family values but neither is there any doubt about the potential advantage to Rome's false image of impeccability. Mrs Burrows was nominated 'Catholic Woman of the Year' in 1986⁶⁶]. The main subject of her book is the destruction of the traditional family by the so-called 'childs' rights' groups, in line of course with the UN Convention and Satan's ultimate aim of total, global population control. The 'Gay Rights' movement is in complete harmony with these aspirations. Mrs Burrows describes⁶⁷ the implications of New Labour's 'paedophiles' charter'⁶⁸.

Freund and Watson provided the most dramatic corroboration of what many have assumed was pejorative reporting in newspapers, when they published their report in 1992 which found that although homosexuals comprised only 2% of adult men, between 40% and 60% of paedophiles were homosexual and 80% of the victims of paedophilia are boys molested by adult men.

Stephen Green⁶⁹ carefully analysed Home Office figures for sexual offences against teenage males and females and concluded that a homosexual man is...23 times more likely to interfere with someone under 16 than is a hetero*sexual.* He does show that offences against young females greatly outnumber those against young males, by about 4:1 but this only means that New Labour intends to make a bad situation worse. This is easy to prove. During 1998-1999 around 150 convicted paedophiles were released from prison⁷⁰ including the vicious child molester and murderer, Sidney Cooke, said to be *totally* unregenerate. A prison doctor with wide experience of the nature of paedophiles⁷¹ has affirmed that children are in greater danger of molestation now, than say 30 years ago. This conclusion is entirely in agreement with scripture. which shows that those who tolerate sodomites eventually offer their children to them, Genesis 19:8 [2019 Update: "Behold now, I have two daughters which have not known man; let me, I pray you, bring them out unto you, and do ye to them as is good in your eyes: only unto these men do nothing; for therefore came they under the shadow of my roof"], Judges 19:24 [2019 Update: "Behold, here is my daughter a maiden, and his concubine; them I will bring out now, and humble ye them, and do with them what seemeth good unto you: but unto this man do not so vile a thing"]. New Labour obviously intends that this trend should continue. Mercifully, Cooke was re-arrested and gaoled for life in December 1999, BBC News, 17/12/99.

[en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Sidney Cooke Sidney Cooke.

See further *The Cry of Sodom* <u>www.timefortruth.co.uk/alan-oreilly/</u> for the Biblical revelation that sodomites are child molesters 2019 Update]

[2019 Update: Since the above material was compiled it has emerged that child molestation by Moslems is rampant in England:

<u>sputniknews.com/analysis/201804091063289247-uk-muslim-grooming-gangs/</u> <u>gangs/</u> EXCLUSIVE: How UK Authorities Cover Up Child Abuse by Muslim Grooming Gangs

www.dailymail.co.uk/news/article-6398269/Rotherham-grooming-gang-jailed-total-101-years.html

Rotherham grooming gang are jailed for a total of 101 years after sexually assaulting young girls including victim who was 'passed around by 100 Asian men' by age of 16

Moslems, of course, should not even be in UK, let alone able to exploit the vulnerable. See *The KJB*, *Britain and Islam* <u>www.timefortruth.co.uk/alan-oreilly/</u>]

God's Judgement on Sodomites - Disease

The evidence of God's judgement on sodomites now is well-documented^{72,} ⁷³. First, there is disease.

Stephen Green⁷⁴ states homosexual promiscuity when added to the reality of homosexual practice certainly puts its practitioners at enormous risk from sexually transmitted diseases, gut and bowel disorders, and blood borne diseases such as hepatitis B and AIDS. He cites the warning from Capital Gav itself, p 99, that Hepatitis B which kills more people in one day than AIDS does in a year. Nevertheless, the AIDS condition continues to take its toll, 871 men having died from it through homosexual intercourse in the six months to June 1997⁷⁵. Both the Christian Institute and NARTH, National Association for Research and Therapy of Homosexuality, warn that by the age of 30, 30% of gay men will be HIV-positive or dead of AIDS⁷⁶. The media have repeatedly tried to pass off AIDS* as a general problem, afflicting more heterosexuals than sodomites, e.g. Channel 4 Wise Up, 2/8/99 [2019 Update: Site no longer available]. However, Messrs Green and Smith have shown that AIDS is a prejudiced affliction, attacking mainly sodomites and intravenous drug users [2019 Update: See remarks under Reference 27]. These, of course, are often one and the same and infections spread rapidly because sodomites are notoriously promiscuous⁷⁷. The proportion of sodomites reporting 10 or more "partners" in the last 5 years is more than 4 times that of heterosexual men.

The tragedy for Britain and other developed countries is that sodomite pressure persuades government to spend disproportionate amounts of money on AIDS research when the lives of cancer and heart disease sufferers could have been saved if additional funds had been available^{78, 79}. See comments earlier, on the booklet *Bankrolling Gay Proselytism*, by The Christian Institute.

Overseas AIDS – Confirmation of a Condition not a Contagion

[2019 Update: It should be noted that, see remarks under Reference 27] the incidence of AIDS overseas is attributable far more to the unsanitary conditions endured by many individuals in Asia and Africa, where AIDS is most prevalent, than to heterosexual intercourse^{80, 81}.

To be scrupulously fair, one detailed reference [AIDS, An Obituary for Africa, Intelligence Digest Briefing Paper 119, Intelligence International Limited, Cheltenham, Glos., 1987. Source no longer available] p 4 is very definite about the spread of AIDS in Black Africa by means of illicit heterosexual sex between lorry drivers and prostitutes. However, nothing is said in this report about the absence of rigorous AIDS testing* in Africa and the effects of drug abuse among prostitutes, which has greatly accelerated in recent years and produces symptoms identical to those of AIDS. Lagard Smith discusses both these crucial points in detail⁸². If AIDS was easily spread by heterosexual sex, an AIDS epidemic would now be ravaging the West but as Lagard Smith rightly comments, this has not happened⁸³. AIDS is a serious problem because it is both fatal and incurable** but as Stephen Green points out, it remains [2019 Update: Strictly speaking as a condition, not a virus. See Reference 27] *The prejudiced virus*⁸⁴. Were it not for drug addicts and sodomites, there would probably be no AIDS in this country. However, its existence in Britain lends considerable weight to the possibility that sodomites are prepared to infect blood supplies with the virus, if they don't achieve all their political ambitions⁸⁵. The Intelligence Digest Report does produce compelling evidence [AIDS, An Obituary for Africa, Intelligence Digest Briefing Paper 119, Intelligence International Limited, Cheltenham, Glos., 1987. Source no longer available] p 5, that AIDS did in fact originate in East Africa, through heathen practices involving bestiality. Later research (Ransom and Day [2019 Update: See Reference 27]) would suggest that this is not the case. However, the west has already received more than its share of undesirable African imports. These include African jungle music to promote jungle morals, corrupt African Bible manuscripts from Alexandria, Egypt and Phoenician Baal worship, 1 Kings 17, which relocates in Italy via Egypt to become Roman Catholicism.

*The work of Ransom and Day indicates that such testing is not feasible but confirms that the crippling destitution of much of the African population is directly related to the condition described as AIDS.

**Unless the sufferer is willing and able to adopt a healthier 'lifestyle' – which may be extremely difficult in Africa.

God's Judgement on Sodomites - "Gay Gene," Gay Violence, Gay Self-Harm

These results leave no doubt that sodomy is acquired behaviour and that the so-called "gay gene" is a mythological concept propagated by sodomites to win further political and public support. Dr Paul Cameron, M.D. of the Family Research Institute in Washington, DC has described sodomy as *addictive behaviour* like *chronic drug use or alcoholism* and states that *no one has found a single replicable genetic, hormonal or chemical difference between heterosexuals and homosexuals. When you consider [sodomite] practices the case for "born that way" becomes ludicrous⁸⁶. All authentic research has supported Dr Cameron's conclusions⁸⁷.*

Then there are the results of violence, suicides and accidents, including of course the effects of excessive alcohol and drug abuse - see Dr Stammers' comments [2019 Update: Under *Sodomite Danger to Youth*]. The Family Research Institute in Washington, DC has revealed that the top six serial killers in the USA were all sodomites and that about 50% of all murders are in some way associated with sodomites venting their rage on one another. The median age of death has been found to be 40 years for male sodomites and 45 years for lesbians. The figures were only about 4 years higher before the AIDS/rampant drugs abuse phenomena began to take an accelerated toll, such is the nature of the violent, unstable and disease ridden homosexual sub-culture⁸⁸.

Nevertheless, sections of the media continue to try to deceive the public. When I complained by 'phone to Channel 4 about the misleading nature of the *Wise Up* programme, I was told not only that most AIDS cases were through heterosexual intercourse (which contradicts Ransom and Day's research) but also that the Channel did not differentiate between heterosexual and homosexual intercourse. This is a wilfully ignorant policy if ever there was one, especially in view of the essential and obvious differences between the two!

Age of Consent – So-Called

Encouragingly, the public is continuing to oppose the anti-family spread of sodomv and paedophilia by successive governments. Surveys carried out earlier in this decade [2019 Update: 1990-1999] revealed that at least 84% of the public were against lowering the age for sodomy to 16 and 81% against lowering the age to 18⁸⁹. A slightly later survey⁹⁰ found that over 70% of men believed that homosexual intercourse is always or mostly wrong. Nevertheless, New Labour continues to serve the interests of the sodomite minority against those of the public majority, pledging itself to repeal Clause 28 of the 1988 Local Government Act which prevents local authorities from promoting sodomy⁹¹. Stephen Green⁹² has listed prominent individuals from politics, the media and elsewhere who appear to be in favour of sodomites gaining greater access to school children because they have publicly expressed "a sense of alarm" over Clause 28. Titles have been given as they applied at the time. They include Paddy Ashdown, MP, Katie Boyle, Melvyn Bragg [Regrettable, given Mr Bragg's excellent work www.amazon.co.uk/Book-Books-Radical-Impact-1611-2011/dp/1444705164 The Book of Books: The Radical Impact of the King James Bible 1611-2011 2019 Update], Anna Carteret, Julie Christie, Professor Anthony Clare, Billy Connolly, Robin Cooke MP, Frank Dobson MP, Lady Antonia Fraser, Sir Clement Freud, Sheila Hancock, Rt Hon Roy Hattersley MP, Rt Hon Denis Healey MP, Lenny Henry, Rt Revd Richard Holloway, Sir Michael Howard, Simon Hughes MP, Rt Hon Gerald Kaufman, Ludovic Kennedy, Rt Hon Neil Kinnock MP, Maureen Lipman, Michael Meacher MP, Dame Iris Murdoch (now deceased), Trevor Nunn, Rt Hon Dr David Owen, John Prescott MP, Claire Rayner, Prunella Scales, Ned Sherrin, Chris Smith MP, Lord Soper, Jack Straw MP, Rt Hon Shirley Williams MP, Victoria Wood, Susannah York. Note how strongly the now New Labour is represented!

[2019 Update: Many of the above have since passed from the scene but the names listed indicate the prominence of the pro-sodomite lobby that still per-sists]

More recently⁹³ 79 MP's signed Early Day Motion 1621 for the repeal of Section 28, 64 Labour, 14 Liberal Democrats, 1 Plaid Cymru. It was disappointing that Dr Ashok Kumar, Labour, Redcar and Cleveland, was amongst them because he had assured me by 'phone that he would not support any further lowering of the age of consent from 16.

[2019 Update: <u>en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ashok_Kumar_(British_politician)</u> Dr Kumar was the Labour MP for the Middlesbrough South and East Cleveland

Constituency which includes the borough of Redcar and Cleveland, from 1997 until his death in 2010]

This is exactly what repeal of Section 28 is intended to achieve but by God's mercy, the Lords voted against its repeal on 7/2/00. The Commons retaliated by means of another vote for lowering the "age of consent" to 16 on 10/2/00, by 3:1, wilfully ignoring Luke 17:21 **"It is impossible but that offences will come: but woe unto him, through whom they come!"** Thus the battle continues.

[2019 Update: <u>en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Section_28</u> *Section* 28. Sodomite and pro-sodomite pressure regrettably brought about the repeal of Clause or Section 28 in November 2003]

Sodomite Nazis – Then and Now

The threat posed by sodomites with political power, although small in number is further illustrated by a recent publication entitled *The Pink Swastika*, by Scott Lively and Kevin Abrams⁹⁴. This book documents the integral part that homosexuals had in the Nazi party. It points out that the Nazis were known as *a gang of homosexuals, thugs and drunks*. A doctor from an institute that treated homosexuals in pre-war Germany claimed, *Not ten percent of those men...were sexually normal*. The book documents that Hitler appointed homosexuals to key positions in his government. Hitler had murdered the homosexual Ernst Röhm, commander of the SA or 'Storm Section' in 1934⁹⁵ but that was because he feared the latter's power, not because Röhm was a sodomite. He also removed Fritsch, Commander-in-Chief of the Army in 1938, on a fictitious charge of homosexuality for the same reason⁹⁶. Evidently Nazi sodomites were safe if they agreed with Hitler's politics.

Sodomite Bible Corrupters

Lively and Abrams have therefore corroborated the studies by Mr Hilton⁹⁷, Mr Green⁹⁸, Mrs Riches⁹⁹ and Mrs Burrows¹⁰⁰ bringing together Catholic politicians, population control freaks and practising sodomites. There is yet a further link with Bible perversion. [2019 Update: Dr] Riplinger¹⁰¹ states that the translation stylist for the NIV, Dr Virginia Mollenkott *readily admits her* "*homosexuality*" and reveals that the NIV Old Testament Chairman, Martin Woudstra, professor at Calvin College supports the sodomite group posing as Christians, who call themselves *Evangelicals Concerned*¹⁰². Rev Ivan Foster provides further evidence¹⁰³.

Virginia Mollenkott, consultant for NIV translating committee, stated in an interview for the June 1991 *Episcopal Monthly*¹⁰⁴ that *my lesbianism has always been a part of me...what I did ultimately realise was that God created*

me as I was and that this is where life was meaningful. Christianity and Crisis, Nov. 9, 1987 reports her as stating that forcing gay Christians into silence also denies them the opportunity to celebrate in gratitude to God for their authentic nature and for their life enriching mutual relationship with a loving partner. It is little wonder that the Biblical term **"sodomite"** does not appear in the NIV. Nor is it any wonder that evangelical Christianity in Britain, which supports this version, is seeing no revival.

Paedophile Priests and C of E Supporters

Rev Foster and Dr Lloyd have documented extensively the spread of moral corruption for which Rome is largely responsible and which continues to threaten this nation. In what follows, I have tabled extracts from their publications for the last 5 years only [2019 Update: 1994-1998].

Priests at St Anthony's Franciscan seminary, Santa Barbara, California, were found to have molested 34 youths aged between 14-16 from 1964 to 1987¹⁰⁵.

Priest John Gerard Smythe received 9 charges of indecent assault against children which he carried out over a period of 24 years¹⁰⁶.

Priest Brendan Smyth, 67, was sentenced to 4 years gaol for 17 charges of indecent assault against 5 boys and 3 girls, carried out between 1964-1988. Priest Daniel John Curran, 44, was accused of assaults on 9 young boys, carried out between 1990-1994¹⁰⁷. He was found guilty on 18 charges concerning the boys and gaoled for 7 years¹⁰⁸.

Bishop Eamonn Casey was found to have fathered an illegitimate son in 1974^{109} .

Priest Liam Cosgrove, 68, was found dead in sodomite sauna club in Dublin¹¹⁰. He had not been there to "minister".

No fewer than 12 priests were under investigation in Ulster and the Irish Republic for crimes against children in January 1995¹¹¹.

Priest Joseph Scally, was wanted by the RUC in 1982 for 12 counts of gross indecency and indecent assault against children. He was later charged with 5 sex offences against boys¹¹².

Priests Gerard John McCallion, 47, William Bernard Gallagher, 56, Joseph Laurence Reid, 43 and John Donovan, 74, were all charged with indecent assaults against children. 80 priests in the past 2 years are reported as having received treatment for paedophile tendencies in a Dublin clinic. McCallion was gaoled for 2 years on 9 charges of indecency against 3 young girls¹¹³. The *Calvary Contender*, Volume 12, No. 19 [2019 Update: Source no longer

available] states that 10,000 of 57,000 Catholic priests in the USA may be sodomites, although some bishops put the figure at 40% and maintain that 3,000 may be paedophiles. It is estimated that 50% of Catholic priests do not adhere to their celibacy vows ¹¹⁴.

Priest John Brendan McCabe, 43, received 12 charges of indecent assault against a 10 year old boy. He was imprisoned for 20 months, for offences committed between 1979-1985^{115, 116}.

Professor Donald MacLeod, of the Free Church of Scotland was charged with 6 indecent assaults on 5 women. These assaults could rightly be described as ecumenical fruit¹¹⁷.

Priest Edward Kilpatrick, 51, was charged with 19 offences of indecency against 2 boys. Priest John Dyer, 55, the headmaster St John's College, Hampshire, was accused of sexually abusing 6 boys between 1985 and 1994¹¹⁸.

Priest Joseph Steele, 55, received 11 charges of indecent assault against 3 girls and 2 boys, committed between 1969-1983¹¹⁹.

Thomas Hamilton, the Dunblane killer of 16 children and their teacher, horrifically exemplified the potential for sodomite violence. He had been dismissed in disgrace from the Boy Scout movement and undoubtedly showed sodomite tendencies. Hamilton had connections with the homosexual network in Edinburgh, had been cautioned by police there for a homosexual offence and banned from a local gun club for pointing firearms at members. Tragically, the police did not revoke his firearms certificate, nor did they keep him under surveillance¹²⁰. The President for the Association of Chief Police Officers stated in a letter to The Times, 8/8/96 that 96% of all firearms used in crimes had never been licensed [2019 Update: Source no longer available but see remarks under Reference 120]. Nevertheless, successive governments ignored this information and used the Dunblane tragedy to turn ordinarv citizens into criminals by banning private ownership of hand guns, instead of outlawing sodomy, which was the basis of the Dunblane outrage. Such is the power and influence of sodomite politics. "A false balance is abomination to the Lord" Proverbs 11:1. Concerned Christians are continuing to monitor the Hamilton case in order to determine more of the truth surrounding the killer's sodomite associations. [2019 Update: Thomas Hamilton was part of a sodomite child molester 'sub culture.' See Predicate: Thomas Hamilton and the Dunblane Massacre: The Dunblane Massacre – Ten Years After, Peter Soto:

www.amazon.co.uk/Predicate-Thomas-Hamilton-Dunblane-Massacre/dp/1840681365]

Priest Bernard Green, 43, teacher, a housemaster at Ampleforth College, was charged with indecent assault on 13 year old boy¹²¹.

Sinn Feiners, Martin McGuinness and Mitchel McLaughlin gave their support for a sodomite "Gay Pride Festival" in Londonderry¹²².

Scottish Roman Catholic Bishop Roderick Wright, 56, was found to be the father of an illegitimate son and priest Dermot O'Gorman the father of two illegitimate children¹²³.

Priest Adrian McLeish, 45, of Newcastle was found guilty of 12 charges of indecent assault against 4 boys, aged 10, 10, 12, 18 and gaoled for 6 years¹²⁴.

Priest Brendan Smyth, was sentenced on 25/7/97 to a further 12 years gaol for a total of 74 charges of indecency, committed over a period of 40 years. He died on 22/8/97. [2019 Update: See note above. Smyth was first convicted of child abuse in 1991. He fled to the Republic of Ireland but was extradited to Ulster and sentenced to 4 years in prison in 1994, extended by 12 in 1997, cut short by his death in prison. See *Brendan Smyth* en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Brendan Smyth]

5 "Christian" brothers from St Joseph's Industrial School, Lower Salthill, Galway were charged with 51 indecent assaults, alleged to have been committed between 1959-1991. Priest Conelius Sagmeister was found to be the father of 3 children by different women, in Traboch, Austria¹²⁵.

Richard Harries, the Bishop of Oxford, stated that he supports lowering the age of sodomite consent from 18 to 16¹²⁶ [2019 Update: See more detailed remarks under Reference 126. Dr Carey not only condoned sodomites in the secular realm but ordained sodomite bishops. Rev Foster's comment is therefore still apposite. See below]. Marton Wharton, Bishop of Newcastle, claimed that *homosexuality within a loving permanent relationship is no sin* and John Austin Baker, former Bishop of Salisbury advocated that practising sodomites should be allowed to marry [2019 Update: John Baker was referring to C of E sodomite clergy]. Lord Runcie admitted that he had knowingly ordained practising sodomites to the Anglican priesthood. Rev Foster's comment is apposite. *Any true child of God still within the Church of England cannot possibly linger any longer within this evil denomination. It grows ever more corrupt every day and is abandoned of God and must be forsaken by those who have any regard for the commands and honour of God¹²⁷. The Church of England has reaped more ecumenical fruit and is becoming a*

modern Sodom. It may well be time for genuine believers within the denomination to emulate their 16th century forbears and form a breakaway Church.

"Wherefore come out from among them, and be ye separate, saith the Lord, and touch not the unclean thing; and I will receive you" 2 Corinthians 6:17.

Priest Martin Greaney, 56, was convicted in the Irish Republic on 13 charges of indecent assaults on 8 young girls, aged 10-14 and gaoled for 7 years. Priest John Brosnan, 48, was sentenced to 4 years gaol for 13 charges of sexual abuse against children, 4 girls and a boy, committed between 1977-1985. Since 1980, 23 Catholic clergy have been convicted in Ireland on sex abuse charges, 15 in the Republic and 8 in the North. 15 cases are pending, of which 2 are in the North¹²⁸.

Rev Foster has **"plentifully declared the thing as it is"** Job 26:3, in his description of several contemporary icons. The late Princess Diana was a woman of *indecent dress and adulterous behaviour*. William Hague, MP, was only *recently married after openly living in sin with the woman who is now his wife*. Mr Hague appears to have also avoided the issue of cohabitation in his Wilberforce address of 16th November 1998¹²⁹. Robin Cook, MP, was *openly parading his mistress at government functions*. Bill Clinton was rightly described as *an habitual whoremonger* and the son of anti-drugs Home Secretary Jack Straw, *has been deemed guilty of drug peddling*¹³⁰. These are timely reminders.

Displaying more ecumenical fruit, Dr Lindsay Brown, 57, an Irish Presbyterian and vice principal of Bangor Grammar School, was convicted of 11 charges of indecency against boys 11-12. Priest John Lloyd, 57, was gaoled for 21 months for an attack on a 13 year old girl in 1974¹³¹.

Occasionally the Vatican appears to display traces of conscience over the various revelations about the evil that it condones. For example, the Vatican issued an "apology" for the Nazi holocaust of the Second World War. The document is said to have ignored the persecution of the Jews, evaded the silence of Roman Catholic leaders during the Holocaust and to have sought to exonerate Pius XII from any blame. Lord Janner of Braunstone, chairman of the Holocaust Education Trust rejected it as *totally inadequate*. However, Rome's apology for the holocaust is as hollow as her professed willingness to correct the behaviour of her perverted priests. Rev Foster stated That Rome was deeply involved with Hitler's Nazis cannot be denied. Her bishops blessed the soldiers of the Third Reich on many occasions...the Roman Catholic Church allied itself openly with the fascist leadership and supported the massacre of Serbian Orthodox Church members who refused to convert to Rome. What passes for repentance is but a strategic realignment of her public stance and redefinition of her attitudes that signify nothing. It is but a retouching of the paint on the whore's face, where her wickedness had become visible to the discerning¹³².

On a more positive note, traditionally minded Anglican bishops from Africa accused Western bishops of betraying the Bible on sexuality at the Lambeth Conference. Delegates voted 526 to 70 with 45 abstentions in support of a resolution that *sodomy is incompatible with Scripture*. Pro-sodomite Bishop Holloway of Edinburgh stated *It is very difficult to be a lesbian and gay Christian. It takes enormous courage*. Once again, Rev Foster's comment is apposite. We have to say to Bishop Holloway that it is not merely difficult to be a sodomite and a Christian, it is impossible. Sodomy is an abomination, anathematised by God and condemned by His Word. No one can claim to love the Lord Jesus Christ as Saviour and yet walk in darkness and such abominable defiance of His law, 1 John 1:6¹³³.

Focusing on two more contemporary icons, Rev Foster rightly described the relationship between Camilla Parker Bowles and Prince Charles as an affront to decency. He and Camilla Parker Bowles have continued in an adulterous relationship during her marriage, which has now ended, and his marriage to the late Diana, Princess of Wales. The liaison was one of the worst kept secrets of Royalty. Clearly, the Prince's associations with Rome and the New Age Movement have not helped to improve his personal conduct.

HRH Prince would benefit from reviewing the centrepiece of The Coronation Oath. See <u>www.timefortruth.co.uk/why-av-only/</u> Royal Law – James 2v8.

The Oath is sealed with the King James Bible...presented to the monarch. The presenter at Queen Elizabeth II's Coronation was the Moderator of the Church of Scotland, with these words. "Our gracious Queen: to keep your Majesty ever mindful of the Law and the Gospel of God as the Rule for the whole life and government of Christian Princes, we present you with this Book, the most valuable thing that this world affords. Here is Wisdom [Revelation 13:18]; This is the royal Law [James 2:8]; These are the lively Oracles of God [Acts 7:38, Romans 3:2, Hebrews 5:12, 1 Peter 4:11]."

[2019 Update: HRH Prince Charles has a high regard for the 1611 Holy Bible. That is most likely why he continues to receive the Lord's mercy <u>www.time-fortruth.co.uk/why-av-only/</u> *The KJB Story 1611-2011 Abridged* pp 3-4] In the meantime, the Roman Catholic Archbishop of Cardiff, John Ward, 70, was arrested on 26th January 1999 for the rape of 6 year old girl in London, nearly 40 years ago¹³⁴.

"Behold, ye have sinned against the Lord: and be sure your sin will find you out" Numbers 32:23.

Dr Dennis Lloyd, editor of *The Stand*, Auckland, New Zealand, has also carefully compiled evidence on the perverted priests of Rome and selections from his extensive documentation follow, emphasising once again that Rome's perversions are as global as her politics.

The first contribution is from Robert Mugabe, surprisingly, in view of statements made earlier¹³⁵. Nevertheless, Mr Mugabe said of sodomy, in defence of anti-sodomite laws *It's unnatural and there is no question of ever allowing these people to behave worse than dogs and pigs. If dogs and pigs do not do it, why must human beings*?¹³⁶, citing REUTER. Mr Mugabe is right in likening sodomites to the two filthiest animals in the Bible, 2 Peter 2:22 [2019 Update: **"But it is happened unto them according to the true proverb, The dog is turned to his own vomit again; and the sow that was washed to her wallowing in the mire**"] but he could not prevent [2019 Update: pro-sodomite] clergy from attending the World Council of Churches assembly in Harare in 1998, without fear of prosecution¹³⁷. The reason is not difficult to comprehend, because the article stated *Fearing that the assembly might take itself and its hard currency elsewhere, Zimbabwe has agreed to a memorandum of understanding relaxing the law.* **"For the love of money is the root of all evil"** 1 Timothy 6:10.

The firm stand against sodomy by the Bishops from Africa at Lambeth shows the mercy of God upon that unhappy continent. Much of its tribulation stems from world-wide, wilful ignorance of, 1 Corinthians 14:38 [2019 Update: "But if any man be ignorant, let him be ignorant"] and/or contempt for, Romans 3:11-18 [2019 Update: "There is none that understandeth, there is none that seeketh after God. They are all gone out of the way, they are together become unprofitable; there is none that doeth good, no, not one. Their throat is an open sepulchre; with their tongues they have used deceit; the poison of asps is under their lips: Whose mouth is full of cursing and bitterness: Their feet are swift to shed blood: Destruction and misery are in their ways: And the way of peace have they not known: There is no fear of God before their eyes"], the prophecy of Noah concerning his descendants who subsequently populated the earth, Genesis 9:25-27. This prophecy sets out racial destinies for all time, according to the directive will of God. Note that Noah refers to Canaan his grandson, rather than Ham because God had already bestowed blessing on Noah's sons, Genesis 9:1, a blessing that was **"without repentance"** Romans 11:29.

"And he said, Cursed be Canaan; a servant of servants shall he be unto his brethren. And he said, Blessed be the Lord God of Shem; and Canaan shall be his servant. God shall enlarge Japheth, and he shall dwell in the tents of Shem; and Canaan shall be his servant". Note that the curse stemmed from sodomy, Genesis 9:24.

Shem, Ham and Japheth are the progenitors of the Oriental, Negroid and Caucasian races respectively.

Commenting on this passage in his well-known *Bible Handbook* [www.amazon.com/Halleys-Bible-Handbook-Abbreviated-Commen-

tary/dp/B001TIEQCO Halley's Bible Handbook 24th Edition 1965 2019 Update], Henry Halley states p 74, Descendants of Ham to be servant races; Shemites to preserve knowledge of the true God; Japhetic races to have largest portion of world, and to supplant Semitic races as teachers of God. It was fulfilled when Israelites took Canaan, Greeks took Sidon, and Rome conquered Carthage; and ever since Japhetic races have dominated the world, and have been converted to the God of Shem, while Semitic races have occupied a place of comparative insignificance and Hamitic races a place of servitude. An amazing forecast!

Disobedience to the directive will of God on the issue of race, as revealed by Noah, has resulted in untold bloodshed, particularly in this violent century, from the slaughter in China during World War 2 to the battlegrounds of the Middle East and the terror that grips Africa today. In the meantime, the **"abominations and filthiness of...THE MOTHER OF HARLOTS"**, Revelation 17:4, 5 continues...

Catholic bishop Robert Sanchez, former Archbishop of Santa Fe, New Mexico, was found to have been sexually involved with 20 young women. He had concealed hundreds of cases of young boys abused by priests in his archdiocese and was forced to resign in 1993 after an investigation into the abuses. One lawyer dealt with 47 cases, others had filed 40 cases, while church authorities and victims were dealing with yet another 40 cases¹³⁸.

Priest James Channing-Pearce, 57, was gaoled for 5 years for indecent assaults on pupils aged 12-16 at Stonyhurst College between 1987-1995¹³⁹.

A California jury on Thursday ordered the Roman Catholic diocese in Stockton to pay \$US30 million to two young men who endured years of sexual abuse by a Catholic priest. Jon Howard, 19, along with his brother John, 23, charged Father Oliver O'Grady (should be Oliver Degrady - Dr Lloyd) with repeatedly molesting them. O'Grady, who admitted molesting the boys in a 1993 criminal trial, is serving a 14 year prison term¹⁴⁰ citing the New Zealand Herald, 18/7/98.

The full horror of how British child migrants suffered at the hands of paedophile priests in Australia emerged last week. Children transported in the 1960s endured years of depravity at the hands of the Christian Brothers who abused them in the name of God. In a harrowing report into the scandal of child migration, the Commons Health Committee highlighted the alleged abuse suffered by boys and girls sent to Catholic institutions in the 20 years [after] 1947. Referring to one specific home, the report said: "Some of what was done there was of a quite exceptional depravity, so that terms like sexual depravity are too weak to convey it." The plight of up to 10,000 youngsters who were sent from children's homes to Australia and New Zealand has received "shamefully little attention," (guess why? - Dr Lloyd) the MPs said. The report found that most former child migrants seemed to have been subjected to considerable hardship and singled out Catholic homes run by the Christian Brothers and the Sisters of Mercy in Australia as particularly brutal. The Christian Brothers have publicly apologized for the abuse that took place in their homes, (they certainly cannot deny it - Dr Lloyd) but the MPs said that there was 'more to learn' about what went on. The Brothers were also criticised for using 'every legal avenue' to block court action by abuse victims (YOU BET THEY DID! - Dr Lloyd)¹⁴¹, citing Roland Wayson, Associate Political Editor, International Express.

According to the BBC news, <u>news.bbc.co.uk/</u>, 23/10/00, $28/10/00^{142}$ [2019 Update: See Reference 142 for detailed sources], Cardiff Crown Court sentenced 42 – year – old Father Joe Jordan to eight years gaol in September 2000 for a series of sexual assaults on young boys. The assaults took place between 1987 and 1989, during which Jordan was retained as a priest despite concern over his activities.

Following Jordan's trial, there was a call for the Archbishop of Cardiff, Most Rev John Aloysius Ward, to resign by a former South Wales priest, Ambrose Walsh. Ambrose Walsh stepped down as a canon over the affair and because of the imprisonment of Archbishop Ward's press officer, Father John Lloyd, for paedophile offences in 1998. See comments earlier, with respect to Father Lloyd. [2019 Update: Ward took 'early retirement' on 26 October 2001 and died on 27 March 2007. See

<u>en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Sexual_abuse_scandal_in_Cardiff_archdiocese_</u> Sexual abuse scandal in Cardiff archdiocese]

Full Circle – See Explanatory Note

The Catholic Church is now facing a number of compensation claims from individuals abused by priests, the [2019 Update: above] report stated [2019 Update: *déjà vu*]. In the meantime, another Catholic priest, Father Gerard Flahive has been granted "administrative leave" by the Roman Catholic Archbishop of Birmingham, pending the outcome of a police investigation into allegations against Flahive concerning an incident of child sex abuse committed in 1980. [2019 Update: Flahive was gaoled for nine months for child molestation in June 2002, the light sentence understandably provoking outrage from his victims and their families. *John "Gerry" Flahive – Birmingham* (heukdatabase.com/2012/07/04/john-gerry-flahive-birmingham/]

Fundamental Focus, Issue No. 5, June-September 2000 reports that "A 71 year-old retired Roman Catholic priest, who committed sex offences against young boys, was jailed for 12 years in April of this year. Father Eugene Greene was sentenced at Donegal Circuit Court after pleading guilty to 40 sample charges involving 26 victims, most of them altar boys, between 1965 and 1982. The cases came to light when Father Greene approached the Gardai complaining that he was being blackmailed. When the accusation was investigated a man told detectives that he had been abused by the priest, and follow-up inquiries uncovered the 25 other victims and incidents dating back over three decades. Judge Matthew Dreary described some of the abuses carried out by Greene as horrific, and said they had caused great pain, trauma and emotional upset. He sentenced the priest to a number of concurrent jail terms and refused him leave to appeal". Fundamental Focus may be obtained from Mr William Kernohan, 180 Ballygarvey Road, Broughshane, Co. Antrim BT43 7HD [2019 Update: Source no longer available].

Taken together, these disclosures should come as no surprise. Woodrow¹⁴³ has described what Martin Luther found when he visited Rome early in the 16th century. *Iniquity existed amongst all classes of the clergy. Priests told indecent jokes and used awful profanity, even during Mass. The papal court was served at supper by twelve naked girls* (no wonder Rupert Murdoch has been made a papal knight!). "No one can imagine what sins and infamous actions are committed in Rome," [Luther] said, "they must be seen and heard to be believed. Thus they are in the habit of saying, 'If there is a hell, Rome is built over it'." [2019 Update: Ralph Woodrow has since adopted an ecumenical stance and disavowed his book *Babylon Mystery Religion*, having withdrawn it from circulation. The citation may still be found, however. See

Reference 143. See further *Avram's Critique of Mr. Ralph Woodrow* <u>seedofabraham.net/2babreb.htm</u> on Woodrow's ecumenism]

Surely Rome is **"MYSTERY BABYLON THE GREAT, THE MOTHER** OF HARLOTS AND ABOMINATIONS OF THE EARTH" Revelation

17:5. Dr Ruckman has stated¹⁴⁴ that If the Bible was tough on Rome, Luther was in agreement with it. He graciously addressed Pope Paul III as "Your Hellishness" and again as "Most Hellish Father". Luther's strong suit was his preaching. "The court of Rome is more corrupt than Babylon or Sodom...the most lawless den of thieves, the most shameless of all brothels, the very kingdom of sin, death and hell...so that not even antichrist if he were to come could devise any addition to its wickedness". It may be that in the light of all these disclosures, even Mrs Bogle might be encouraged to re-evaluate the implications of her stance as a triumphalist Catholic in Britain today.

In compliance with the wickedness of the papal court, Britain had by April 1999 in the name of the so-called "Good Friday Agreement", released 248 terrorists convicted of the most atrocious crimes¹⁴⁵. The number has since risen to 300 [2019 Update: The final total by July 28 2000 was 514. See Reference 145]. Cardinal Manning's vision¹⁴⁶ must surely be nearing fulfilment and Pember's summary shows that Britain is indeed entering the time the Lord likened to the days of Noah and of Lot, Luke 17:26-30.

"They did eat, they drank, they married wives, they were given in marriage, until the day that Noe entered into the ark, and the flood came and destroyed them all. Likewise also as it was in the days of Lot; they did eat, they drank, they bought, they sold, they planted, they builded; But the same day that Lot went out of Sodom it rained fire and brimstone from heaven, and destroyed them all. Even thus shall it be in the day when the Son of man is revealed."

[2019 Update: The foregoing has shown that Britain has indeed descended into "**spiritually...Sodom and Egypt**" Revelation 11:8. Therefore, Brexit notwithstanding] Britain would do well to heed particularly the judgement on Sodom. The prophet Ezekiel foretells God's judgement on the nations in the last time, Ezekiel 39:6.

Verse 6 states in part "And I will send a fire...among them that dwell carelessly in the isles: and they shall know that I am the Lord." Is this how the British Isles must "understand the fear of the Lord, and find the knowledge of God" Proverbs 2:5?

Conclusion



theoklahomaeagle.net/2017/12/11/californias-thomas-fire-scorches-arealarger-than-new-york-city/

"But I will punish you according to the fruit of your doings, saith the LORD: and I will kindle a fire in the forest thereof, and it shall devour all things round about it" Jeremiah 21:14

References

¹ *The Christian's Handbook of Manuscript Evidence*, Dr Peter S. Ruckman, Bible Baptist Bookstore, 1970 p 68 <u>store.kjv1611.org/</u>

² *Our Protestant Throne and Constitution*, J. A. Kensit, The Protestant Truth Society, London p 13 protestanttruth.com/pts-publications/

³ *The Men Behind the KJV*, Gustavus S. Paine, Baker Book House 1977 pp 182-183 store.kjv1611.org/

⁴ *Translators Revived*, Alexander McClure, Maranatha Bible Society, Litchfield, Michigan, updated from the 1858 Edition p 60 <u>store.kjv1611.org/</u>

⁵ Earth's Earliest Ages, G. H. Pember, Kregel Publications, Michigan, 1982 pp 140-141 store.kjv1611.org/

⁶ *Mark of the Beast*, Dr Peter S. Ruckman, Bible Baptist Bookstore, 1984 p 65 <u>store.kjv1611.org/</u>

⁷ Sex and Social Engineering, Valerie Riches, Family Education Trust, 1999 p 12 www.abebooks.co.uk/9780906229040/Sex-Social-Engineering-Valerie-Riches-0906229049/plp

⁸ *The Book of Hebrews*, Dr Peter S. Ruckman, Bible Baptist Bookstore, 1986 pp 340-342 <u>store.kjv1611.org/</u>

⁹ *FYC Family Bulletin* No. 78, Winter 1994/1995. The earliest online issue was for Winter 1999/2000. Search <u>familyeducationtrust.org.uk/</u> for related material

¹⁰ *The Safe Sex Hoax*, Dr Margaret White, Family Welfare Project, Unity Press, London, 1998 pp 2-3. Currently unavailable

¹¹ Britain in Sin, Christian Voice, 1998 p 9 <u>www.christianvoice.org.uk/?s=Britain+in+sin</u>

¹² Broken Homes and Battered Children, Robert Whelan, Family Education Trust, 1994 pp 30, 32. Currently unavailable

¹³ *The Sexual Dead End*, Stephen Green, Broadview Books, 1992 p 239 <u>www.ama-</u> <u>zon.co.uk/Sexual-Dead-end-Stephen-Green/dp/0951993402</u>. The pro-sodomite's review is an example of how a hit dog yells

¹⁴ *Staring Into The Abyss*, Christian Voice, P.O. Box 62, Royston, Herts., October 1995. Address no longer operative. Consult <u>www.christianvoice.org.uk/</u> for further information

¹⁵ *The Decay of Marriage*, George Brown, Family Education Trust, 1991 p 13. Currently unavailable. Search <u>familyeducationtrust.org.uk/</u> for related material

¹⁶ *The Sexual Dead End*, Stephen Green, Broadview Books, 1992 p 425 <u>www.ama-</u> zon.co.uk/Sexual-Dead-end-Stephen-Green/dp/0951993402

¹⁷ Family and Youth Concern, Silver Jubilee letter, February 1996. Source no longer available. Search <u>familyeducationtrust.org.uk/</u> for related material

¹⁸ *Faith in the Family Advocate*, The Christian Institute, Issue 3, July 1999 p 11. Source no longer available. Search <u>www.christian.org.uk/</u> for related material

¹⁹ *Britain in Sin*, Christian Voice, 1998 p 17 <u>www.christianvoice.org.uk/?s=Britain+in+sin</u>. Latest estimates put the UK divorce rate at 42% <u>www.crispandco.com/site/divorce-statis-</u>

tics/ i.e. a lower figure. However, direct comparison is difficult owing to the rise in cohabitation ²⁰ Ibid, Christian Voice, 1998 p 29

²¹ *FYC Family Bulletin* No. 79, Spring 1995. The final online issue was for Winter 1999/2000. Search <u>familyeducationtrust.org.uk/</u> for related material

²² Ibid No. 95, Spring 1999. Search <u>familyeducationtrust.org.uk/</u> for related material

²³ *The Family, Is it just another lifestyle choice?*, Jon Davies (editor) IEA Health and Welfare Unit, London, 1993 p 52. Currently unavailable

²⁴ *The Decay of Marriage*, George Brown, Family Education Trust, 1991 p 9. Currently unavailable. Search <u>familyeducationtrust.org.uk/</u> for related material

²⁵ Britain in Sin, Christian Voice, 1998 p 15 <u>www.christianvoice.org.uk/?s=Britain+in+sin</u>. 8.7 million abortions have been carried out in the UK since the passing of the Abortion Act in 1968. See *Factchecking campaigning leaflets on abortion* <u>fullfact.org/law/factcheckingcampaigning-leaflets-abortion/</u>

²⁶ Why Say No to Sex?, Josh McDowell, Kingsway Publications, Eastbourne, 1995 pp 30 32 www.amazon.com/Why-Say-Sex-Josh-McDowell/dp/0854765255

²⁷ *Britain in Sin*, Christian Voice, 1998 pp 13, 29, 2, 22, 20 <u>www.christian-voice.org.uk/?s=Britain+in+sin</u>.

See for updated figures on major crime rates *Crime in England Wales: year ending September 2018* www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/bulletins/crimeinenglandandwales/yearendingseptember2018

AIDS is not a virus. From *Britain Under Siege* pp 3-4: **Author's Note:* A most revealing new study, *World Without Aids*, by Steven Ransom and Philip Day, Credence Publications, P.O. Box 3 Tonbridge, Kent TN12 9ZY, 2000, <u>www.worldwithoutaids.org</u> has shown that the research purporting to show that AIDS is a viral infection, is seriously flawed. Ransom and Day show that Dr Robert Gallo, the 'discoverer' of HIV, human immunodeficiency virus, never isolated the virus for independent inspection and neither has any other virologist. Some years after announcing his discovery in 1984, Gallo was the subject of an investigation by the USA's National Academy of Sciences into serious allegations that he had falsified his results. Ransom and Day present detailed findings to show that Gallo's methodology was indeed bogus. There is every reason to believe that HIV in fact does not exist.

Ransom and Day's book nevertheless supports all scripturally based studies, such as those referenced in this work, that condemn the practice of sodomy. Their chapter entitled *Annihilating the Annihilators* leaves one in no doubt that the AIDS condition stems directly from the grossly depraved and unhygienic 'gay lifestyle', coupled with repeated ingestion of both 'recreational' and medicinal drugs, the cumulative effects of which are devastating for the human metabolism. They show that the same condition can evidently result from a frenetic heterosexual lifestyle but the excessively debauched behaviour of sodomites makes them the preferred 'targets' for AIDS. These authors show that the supposedly HIV suppressant drugs, such as AZT, also ingested in large quantities by practising sodomites, only make the problem worse. However, these drugs are not banned because large commercial interests are at stake.

Earlier studies (Green, *The Sexual Dead End*, LaGard Smith, *Sodom's Second Coming*) concluded that AIDS in the developing world, was actually attributable to the chronic problems of poverty, malnutrition, poor sanitation, contaminated water and the diseases

that stem therefrom. Ransom and Day's work confirms the results of these studies and paints a distressing picture of how Africa in particular has been used as a lucrative dumping ground for pharmaceuticals which have been banned in the west and as an unwitting victim of global population control strategies.

All references to AIDS in this work should therefore be read in that context. AIDS has been shown not to be a 'virus' and the condition is only fatal if the sufferer fails to desist from the 'lifestyle' that caused it – and the treatment that **"science falsely so called"** 1 Timothy 6:20, has imposed on the condition for reasons of 'vested interests'. In the west this is possible, in the developing world it is less so, with continuing tragic consequences on a large scale

²⁸ The Sexual Dead End, Stephen Green, Broadview Books, 1992 Appendix 2 <u>www.ama-zon.co.uk/Sexual-Dead-end-Stephen-Green/dp/0951993402</u>

²⁹ Bankrolling gay proselytism <u>www.christian.org.uk/press_release/bankrolling-gay-prose-lytism-2/</u>

³⁰ Sex, Sickness and Silence, Dr Trevor Stammers, Evangelicals Now, December 1997. Currently unavailable but Dr Stammers is cited in *Teen disease cases rocket* www.dailymail.co.uk/health/article-8858/Teen-sex-disease-cases-rocket.html circa 1999-2000 where it is reported that *Since 1995 diagnoses of gonorrhoea are up by 55 per cent to 16,000, and syphilis by 54 per cent. Cases of chlamydia are up by 76 per cent to 56,000.* See also *UK faces sexual health crisis* www.dailymail.co.uk/health/article-176763/UKfaces-sexual-health-crisis.html circa 2001-2005 where it is reported that According to the *latest figures...there are now more than* 22,600 cases of gonorrhoea a year - an alarming *increase of* 87 per cent since 1996. HIV and Aids cases are expected to double between 1997 and 2005...The annual number of cases of chlamydia - the so-called 'silent infection' - which can rob women of their fertility - has doubled to 71,255 since 1996...Even syphilis - which was believed to have been virtually eradicated in the late 20th century - is reemerging with a 374 per cent rise in cases since 1997

³¹ *Rising Crime and the Dismembered Family*, Norman Dennis, IEA Health and Welfare Unit, London, 1993 p 24 <u>www.amazon.co.uk/Rising-Crime-Dismembered-Family-Intellec-tuals/dp/0255363508</u>

³² The Invention of Permanent Poverty, Norman Dennis, IEA Health and Welfare Unit, London, 1997 p 76 <u>www.amazon.co.uk/Invention-Permanent-Poverty-Choice-Wel-</u> <u>fare/dp/1903386918</u>

³³ What On Earth Are We Doing To Our Children?, The Maranatha Community, Manchester, 1995 p 3 <u>www.amazon.co.uk/Children-Nations-Conscience-Maranatha-Community/dp/B0014BNAA6</u>

³⁴ Should Christians Drink?, Peter Masters, The Wakeman Trust, London, 1992 pp 17, 34 www.amazon.com/Should-Christians-Drink-Total-Abstinence/dp/1870855124

Don't Let Them Make Hard Drinking Easy CARE www.care.org.uk/. This CARE publication, apparently no longer available from CARE, states that 1 in 3 drivers killed on the road are above the legal limit, from which the statement in *Britain Under Siege* p 34 Alcohol is the main factor... in $\frac{1}{3}$ of all road deaths was derived, not Dr Masters' book. This writer apologises for any confusion thereby and for the misleading nature of the statement

³⁵ From:

in that all road deaths include other fatalities in addition to drivers. See the references listed below and the summary statement that follows for an overview

en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Reported_Road_Casualties_Great_Britain Reported Road Casualties Great Britain

assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/451402/rrcgb-drink-drive-2013-final.pdf Reported road casualties in Great Britain: Estimates for accidents involving illegalalcohol levels: 2013 (final) and 2014 (provisional) pp 4, 6

assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/543627/rrcgb-drink-drive-final.pdf Reported road casualties in Great Britain: Estimates for accidents involving illegalalcohol levels: 2014 (final) and 2015 (provisional) pp 4, 6, 10

The above web sources show that in the early 1980s approximately a third of all drivers and riders killed were over the limit i.e. in agreement with the CARE figure. That figure had fallen by 2013 to 17%. According to the second PDF p 6 *The proportion of killed drivers and riders over the limit is highest amongst 25 to 39 years old. In 2014, around 25 per cent of those killed from this age group were found to be over the limit, compared with less than 15 per cent for older age groups. The proportion of the killed youngest driver age group (16 to 24 years old) that were found to be over the limit was 21 per cent.* Road deaths from all causes for all victims and those for all victims from alcohol related causes, both though still numerous, have fallen considerably, from 6352 and 1640 in 1979 to 1775 and 240 in 2014. Those figures are indicative of Lamentations 3:22 **"It is of the LORD'S mercies that we are not consumed, because his compassions fail not"**

³⁶ *The Stand*, Vol. VIII, No. 2, Dr. Dennis Lloyd, Auckland, New Zealand, February/March 1998 pp 40-41. Hard copies only, no longer in circulation

³⁷ What On Earth Are We Doing To Our Children?, The Maranatha Community, Manchester, 1995 pp 16-17 <u>www.amazon.co.uk/Children-Nations-Conscience-Maranatha-Community/dp/B0014BNAA6</u>

³⁸ *Tobacco Wars*, BBC1, 27/7/99. Deaths from smoking were estimated to be 77,900 in 2016:

digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/statistics-on-smoking/statistics-on-smoking-england-2018/part-1-smoking-related-ill-health-and-mortality#smokingrelated-mortality Statistics on Smoking - England, 2018 Part 1: Smoking-related ill health and mortality

³⁹ *Rising tide of crime is blamed on sex, drugs and rock 'n' roll*, David Fletcher, Daily Telegraph, 30/5/95. Source no longer available

⁴⁰ *Christian Voice*, P.O. Box 62, Royston, Herts., October 1996. Address no longer operative. Consult <u>www.christianvoice.org.uk/</u> for further information

⁴¹ Sex and Social Engineering, Valerie Riches, Family Education Trust, 1999 p 12 www.abebooks.co.uk/9780906229040/Sex-Social-Engineering-Valerie-Riches-0906229049/plp ⁴² UN-Conventional Rights of the Child, Christian Voice, P.O. Box 62, Royston, Herts., July 1995. Address no longer operative. Consult <u>www.christianvoice.org.uk/</u> for further information

⁴³ *Christian Voice*, P.O. Box 62, Royston, Herts., October 1996. Address no longer operative. Consult <u>www.christianvoice.org.uk/</u> for further information

⁴⁴ Ibid November 1995

45 Ibid June 1999

⁴⁶ Understanding the New World Order, Roy Livesey, New Wine Press, Chichester, England, 1989 pp 139-141 <u>www.amazon.co.uk/Understanding-New-World-Order-Govern-ment/dp/0947852263</u>

⁴⁷ Mass Conversion, Anne McElvoy, The Times Magazine, July 29th, 1995. Source no longer available

⁴⁸ *The Stand*, Vol. VIII, No. 3, April/May 1998 p 30. Hard copies only, no longer in circulation. Murdoch's knighthood displeased some Catholics but he still retains it although he has never converted to Catholicism, unlike Tony Blair. See:

www.independent.co.uk/news/catholic-anger-at-murdochs-papal-knighthood-1145252.html Catholic anger at Murdoch's papal knighthood

en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Rupert_Murdoch Rupert Murdoch

⁴⁹ Ibid Vol. VIII, No. 2, February/March 1998 p 33. <u>www.telegraph.co.uk/news/poli-tics/1573374/Tony-Blair-converts-to-Catholicism.html</u>

⁵⁰ Ibid Vol. IX, No. 2, Feb/March 1999 pp 43-44

⁵¹ *The Sexual Dead End*, Stephen Green, Broadview Books, 1992 p 450 <u>www.ama-</u> <u>zon.co.uk/Sexual-Dead-end-Stephen-Green/dp/0951993402</u>

⁵² Ibid pp 58-59, 62

⁵³ *Homosexuality: The Case Against Liberalisation*, The Christian Institute p 2. Not explicitly available but search <u>www.christian.org.uk/</u> for related material

⁵⁴ *Faith in the Family Advocate*, The Christian Institute, Issue 1, December 1998 p 14. Not explicitly available but search <u>www.christian.org.uk/</u> for related material

⁵⁵ Ibid Issue 3, July 1999 p 4

⁵⁶ *The Burning Bush*, Rev Ivan Foster, Kilskeery Free Presbyterian Church, Omagh, Co. Tyrone, Northern Ireland, February 1994. Not explicitly available but search <u>www.ivanfoster.net/?page_id=1420</u> for related material

⁵⁷ Ibid November 1997

⁵⁸ Ibid November 1997

⁵⁹ Ibid November 1998

⁶⁰ Ibid December 1998

⁶¹ *Christian Voice*, P.O. Box 62, Royston, Herts., December 1997. Address no longer operative. Consult <u>www.christianvoice.org.uk/</u> for further information

62 Ibid January 1999

⁶³ *FYC Family Bulletin* No. 95, Autumn 1997. The final online issue was for Winter 1999/2000. Search <u>familyeducationtrust.org.uk/</u> for related material

⁶⁴ *Homosexuality and Young People*, The Christian Institute, 1998 p 47 <u>www.chris-</u> <u>tian.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/homosexuality-and-young-people.pdf</u>

⁶⁵ *The Fight for The Family*, Lynette Burrows, Family Education Trust, Oxford, March 1999 <u>www.amazon.co.uk/Fight-Family-Adults-Behind-Childrens/dp/0906229146</u>

⁶⁶ *Full Circle?*, Digby Anderson, The Social Affairs Unit, 1988 <u>www.socialaffairsu-nit.org.uk/pub/000074.php</u>

⁶⁷ *The Fight for The Family*, Lynette Burrows, Family Education Trust, Oxford, March 1999 pp 47-48 www.amazon.co.uk/Fight-Family-Adults-Behind-Childrens/dp/0906229146

⁶⁸ Christian Voice, P.O. Box 62, Royston, Herts., July 1998. Address no longer operative. Consult <u>www.christianvoice.org.uk/</u> for further information

⁶⁹ *The Sexual Dead End*, Stephen Green, Broadview Books, 1992 pp 188-189 <u>www.ama-zon.co.uk/Sexual-Dead-end-Stephen-Green/dp/0951993402</u>

⁷⁰ *Christian Voice*, P.O. Box 62, Royston, Herts., April 1998. Address no longer operative. Consult <u>www.christianvoice.org.uk/</u> for further information

⁷¹ Ibid April 1998

⁷² *The Sexual Dead End*, Stephen Green, Broadview Books, 1992 Chapter 9 <u>www.ama-</u> <u>zon.co.uk/Sexual-Dead-end-Stephen-Green/dp/0951993402</u>

⁷³ *Homosexuality and Young People*, The Christian Institute, 1998 Chapter 4 <u>www.christian.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/homosexuality-and-young-people.pdf</u>

⁷⁴ *The Sexual Dead End*, Stephen Green, Broadview Books, 1992 p 94 <u>www.ama-</u> zon.co.uk/Sexual-Dead-end-Stephen-Green/dp/0951993402

⁷⁵ *Homosexuality and Young People*, The Christian Institute, 1998 p 59 <u>www.chris-</u> <u>tian.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/homosexuality-and-young-people.pdf</u>

⁷⁶ Ibid p 65

⁷⁷ Ibid p 33

⁷⁸ *The Sexual Dead End*, Stephen Green, Broadview Books, 1992 p 393 <u>www.ama-</u> zon.co.uk/Sexual-Dead-end-Stephen-Green/dp/0951993402

⁷⁹ Sodom's Second Coming, E. LaGard Smith, Harvest House Publishers, Eugene, Oregon, 1993 p 228 www.amazon.com/Sodoms-Second-Coming-Lagard-Smith/dp/1565071549

⁸⁰ *The Sexual Dead End*, Stephen Green, Broadview Books, 1992 p 107 <u>www.ama-zon.co.uk/Sexual-Dead-end-Stephen-Green/dp/0951993402</u>

⁸¹ Sodom's Second Coming, E. LaGard Smith, Harvest House Publishers, Eugene, Oregon, 1993 pp 219-230 <u>www.amazon.com/Sodoms-Second-Coming-Lagard-Smith/dp/1565071549</u>

⁸² Ibid pp 220-223

⁸³ Ibid p 211

⁸⁴ *The Sexual Dead End*, Stephen Green, Broadview Books, 1992 Chapter 10 <u>www.ama-zon.co.uk/Sexual-Dead-end-Stephen-Green/dp/0951993402</u>

⁸⁵ Doom Town, Chick Publications, 1991 <u>www.chick.com/products/tract?stk=273&ue=d</u>

⁸⁶ *Exposing the AIDS Scandal*, Dr Paul Cameron, Huntington House Inc., Lafayette, Louisiana, 1988 pp 152-153. Source no longer available. Search <u>www.familyresearchinst.org/</u> for related material

⁸⁷ *Homosexuality and Young People*, The Christian Institute, 1998 Chapter 1 <u>www.chris-</u> <u>tian.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/homosexuality-and-young-people.pdf</u>

⁸⁸ *Medical Consequences of What Homosexuals Do*, Facts Matter, P.O. Box 62, Royston, Herts. Address no longer operative. Consult <u>www.christianvoice.org.uk/</u> for further information

Family Research Report, Family Research Institute, Washington, D.C., May-June 1994. Search <u>www.familyresearchinst.org/category/special-reports/</u> for related material

Battle Cry, Chick Publications, September/October 1993. Source no longer available. Search <u>www.chick.com/search/search-results?q=homosexuality</u> for related material

Is There a "Gay Gene"?, NARTH Fact Sheet, Enrico, CA, 1996. Source no longer available. See for refutation of the supposed 'gay gene':

john-jay-3w20.squarespace.com/chapter-six Chapter 6 The Myth of the "Gay Gene" www.theatlantic.com/science/archive/2015/10/no-scientists-have-not-found-the-gaygene/410059/ No, Scientists Have Not Found the 'Gay Gene'

The scripture is of course clear on pro-'gay gene' "science falsely so called" 1 Timothy 6:20. "But the men of Sodom were wicked and sinners before the LORD exceed-ingly" Genesis 13:13.

⁸⁹ *Homosexuality: The Case Against Liberalisation*, The Christian Institute p 3. Not explicitly available but search <u>www.christian.org.uk/</u> for related material

⁹⁰ *Homosexuality and Young People*, The Christian Institute, 1998 p 3<u>www.chris-</u> <u>tian.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/homosexuality-and-young-people.pdf</u>

⁹¹ Ibid pp 99-100

⁹² *The Sexual Dead End*, Stephen Green, Broadview Books, 1992 Appendix 1 <u>www.ama-zon.co.uk/Sexual-Dead-end-Stephen-Green/dp/0951993402</u>

⁹³ *Faith in the Family Advocate*, The Christian Institute, Issue 1, December 1998 p 10. Not explicitly available but search <u>www.christian.org.uk/</u> for related material

⁹⁴ A Friend to Churches Ministries, Letter#29, Dr Samuel Gipp, February 1996 samgipp.com/letter-29/. The Pink Swastika is available from www.amazon.co.uk/Pink-Swastika-Homosexuality-Nazi-

Party/dp/0964760975/ref=sr_1_1?ie=UTF8&qid=1551974331&sr=8-1&keywords=the+pink+swastika

⁹⁵ *History of the Second World War*, Volume 1, Purnell & Sons Ltd., London, 1966 p 5. Source no longer in publication

⁹⁶ Ibid p 10

⁹⁷ The Principality and Power of Europe, Adrian Hilton, 2000 <u>www.amazon.co.uk/Principality-Power-Europe-Adrian-Hilton/dp/0951838628</u>

⁹⁸ *The Sexual Dead End*, Stephen Green, Broadview Books, 1992 <u>www.amazon.co.uk/Sex-ual-Dead-end-Stephen-Green/dp/0951993402</u>

⁹⁹ Sex and Social Engineering, Valerie Riches, Family Education Trust, 1999 <u>www.abe-books.co.uk/9780906229040/Sex-Social-Engineering-Valerie-Riches-0906229049/plp</u>

¹⁰⁰ *The Fight for The Family*, Lynette Burrows, Family Education Trust, Oxford, March 1999 pp 47-48 <u>www.amazon.co.uk/Fight-Family-Adults-Behind-Childrens/dp/0906229146</u>

¹⁰¹ *Which Bible is God's Word Update 2007*, Dr. Gail Riplinger, A.V. Publications Corp., P.O. Box 280, Ararat, VA, pp 43-44, 94-95 <u>shop.avpublications.com/prod</u>uct_info.php?cPath=21&products_id=96&osCsid=buh5b40l529ovqe1ft8ibnlrp7

¹⁰² *The Language of the King James Bible*, Dr. Gail Riplinger, A.V. Publications Corp., P.O. Box 280, Ararat, VA, 1998 p 115 <u>shop.avpublications.com/prod</u>uct info.php?cPath=21&products id=100&osCsid=buh5b40l529oyqe1ft8ibnlrp7

¹⁰³ *The Burning Bush*, Rev Ivan Foster, Kilskeery Free Presbyterian Church, Omagh, Co. Tyrone, Northern Ireland, February 1997. Not explicitly available but search <u>www.ivanfoster.net/?page_id=1420</u> for related material

¹⁰⁴ Virginia Mollenkott testified, My lesbianism has always been a part of me <u>onein-messiah.net/virgM.htm</u>

¹⁰⁵ *The Burning Bush*, Rev Ivan Foster, Kilskeery Free Presbyterian Church, Omagh, Co. Tyrone, Northern Ireland, January 1994. Not explicitly available but search <u>www.ivanfoster.net/?page_id=1420</u> for related material

¹⁰⁶ Ibid February 1994

- ¹⁰⁷ Ibid July-August 1994
- ¹⁰⁸ Ibid February, July 1995
- ¹⁰⁹ Ibid September 1994
- ¹¹⁰ Ibid December 1994
- ¹¹¹ Ibid January 1995
- ¹¹² Ibid June, July/August 1995
- ¹¹³ Ibid February 1996
- ¹¹⁴ Ibid October 1995
- ¹¹⁵ Ibid November 1995
- ¹¹⁶ Ibid February 1996
- ¹¹⁷ Ibid January 1996
- ¹¹⁸ Ibid February 1996
- ¹¹⁹ Ibid March 1996

¹²⁰ Ibid April 1996. *Christian Voice*, March 1996, December 1999 and the Christian Voice Briefing Paper, *Turn The Other Cheek-By Order!*, December 1996 reported on this case. Consult <u>www.christianvoice.org.uk/</u> for further information. Illegal firearms continue to fuel gun crime in the UK <u>www.msn.com/en-gb/news/uknews/the-gun-run-to-britain-how-</u> <u>illegal-firearms-fuelling-bloodshed-on-uks-streets-are-smuggled-into-the-country-fromwarehouses-across-eastern-europe/ar-BBRtLIn</u> *The gun run to Britain: How illegal firearms fuelling bloodshed on UK's streets are smuggled into the country from warehouses across Eastern Europe* ¹²¹ *The Burning Bush*, Rev Ivan Foster, Kilskeery Free Presbyterian Church, Omagh, Co. Tyrone, Northern Ireland, June 1996. Not explicitly available but search <u>www.ivanfoster.net/?page_id=1420</u> for related material

- 122 Ibid July/August 1996
- ¹²³ Ibid October 1996
- ¹²⁴ Ibid December 1996
- ¹²⁵ Ibid September 1997

¹²⁶ See:

Homosexuality: Good & Right in the Eyes of God? The Wedding of Truth to Compassion & Reason to Revelation, F. Earle Fox and David W. Virtue, Emmaus Ministries, A School of Christian Apologetics, 2002-2003, pp 69-70 www.amazon.com/Homosexuality-Good-Right-Eyes-God/dp/0945778015

Bishops Call on Government to stop 'moral drift' www.independent.co.uk/news/bishopscall-on-government-to-stop-moral-drift-1166330.html

HOMOSEXUALITY – A Biblical Approach, II BIBLICAL TEACHING ON HOMOSEXU-ALITY, A. THE REVISIONIST OR "NEW APPROACH," Banner of Truth, July 22 2002 banneroftruth.org/uk/resources/articles/2002/homosexuality-a-biblical-approach/#

The Rt Reverend John Baker – obituary <u>www.telegraph.co.uk/news/obituar-</u> ies/10878612/The-Rt-Rev-John-Baker-obituary.html

Runcie: I ordained gay priests www.independent.co.uk/news/runcie-i-ordained-gaypriests-1347507.html

George Carey en.wikipedia.org/wiki/George_Carey

Carey ordained 'gay bishops' news.bbc.co.uk/1/hi/uk/3048374.stm

¹²⁷ *The Burning Bush*, Rev Ivan Foster, Kilskeery Free Presbyterian Church, Omagh, Co. Tyrone, Northern Ireland, December 1997. Not explicitly available but search <u>www.ivanfoster.net/?page_id=1420</u> for related material

¹²⁸ Ibid December 1997

¹²⁹ Christian Voice, P.O. Box 62, Royston, Herts., January 1999. Address no longer operative. Consult <u>www.christianvoice.org.uk/</u> for further information

¹³⁰ *The Burning Bush*, Rev Ivan Foster, Kilskeery Free Presbyterian Church, Omagh, Co. Tyrone, Northern Ireland, February 1998. Not explicitly available but search <u>www.ivanfoster.net/?page_id=1420</u> for related material

- ¹³¹ Ibid March 1998
- ¹³² Ibid April 1998
- ¹³³ Ibid September 1998
- ¹³⁴ Ibid February 1999

¹³⁵ From *Britain Under Siege* p 23: ...In 1974 alone, 150 Africans were massacred in Rhodesia by their own countrymen, black Africans belonging to Robert Mugabe's ZANU terrorist movement, supported by the World Council of Churches [*The Fraudulent Gospel*, Bernard Smith, Edgar Bundy Ministries, Inc., Miami Shores, FL, 1977 p 11 <u>www.ama-</u> zon.co.uk/fraudulent-gospel-Bernard-Smith/dp/0896010074]. This was when Rhodesia was still under efficient white rule and relatively stable. Ironically, during the recent furore over the arrest of Chilean dictator General Pinochet, Robert Mugabe was a welcome visitor to these shores [2019 Update: www.lbc.co.uk/news/the-news-explained/six-leaders-queen-has-met-worse-than-trump/ Six World Leaders The Queen Has Met Who Are Worse Than Donald Trump] even though his ZANU party eventually murdered up to 20,000 civilians of the Matabele tribe, his main political rivals [2019 Update: The death estimates vary widely although 20,000 is the victims' estimate en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Gukurahundi Gukurahundi]. After twenty years of brutal incompetence from the Mugabe regime, Zimbabwean blacks are turning in desperation to the country's former Prime Minister, Ian Smith, now in his late seventies [2019 Update: Ian Smith died in 2007. Ian Smith en.wikipe-dia.org/wiki/Ian_Smith] but still very active for his nation and its people of whatever racial background. Mr Smith has stated [The New Covenant Times, The Kingdom Foundation, Ayrshire, Scotland, September/October 1997. Currently unavailable] we really have a

Ayrshile, Scotland, September/October 1997. Currently unavailable we reality have a bunch of gangsters there who are pocketing the money daily. We live in a country where the rich get richer and the poor get poorer. I have more black Rhodesians than white Rhodesians coming to see me nowadays. They walk in my front gate because it is always open. Most of them say: "What can we do? Give us the benefit of your experience. Our children are hungry. We never had hungry children when it was called Rhodesia." [2019 Update: Robert Mugabe has resigned www.bbc.co.uk/news/world-africa-42071488 Zimbabwe's Robert Mugabe resigns, ending 37-year rule but the future of Zimbabwe remains uncertain www.telegraph.co.uk/news/2018/08/04/future-uncertain-zimbabwe-contentious-election-deadly-clashes/ Future uncertain for Zimbabwe after contentious election and deadly clashes]

¹³⁶ *The Stand*, Vol. 1, No. 29, Dr. Dennis Lloyd, Auckland, New Zealand, October/November 1995 p 45. Hard copies only, no longer in circulation

¹³⁷ Original reference with citation *Daily Telegraph* 2/5/96, also cited in *Dave Hunt, The Hope of the Gospel* <u>www.lakeinfoworks.com/rr/resource/hunt/dh17.html</u>

¹³⁸ *The Stand*, Vol. VII, No. 1, Dr. Dennis Lloyd, Auckland, New Zealand, December /January 1996/97 pp 36-37. Hard copies only, no longer in circulation

- ¹³⁹ Ibid Vol. VIII, No. 2, February/March 1998 p 24
- ¹⁴⁰ Ibid Vol. VIII, No. 6, October/November 1998 p 30
- ¹⁴¹ Ibid Vol. VIII, No. 6, October/November 1998 pp 25-29
- ¹⁴² Archbishop urged to quit over paedophile priest <u>www.tele-</u> graph.co.uk/news/uknews/1371007/Archbishop-urged-to-quit-over-paedophile-priest.html
 - Eight Years' jail for sex priest news.bbc.co.uk/1/hi/wales/979886.stm

Priest suspended in abuse probe news.bbc.co.uk/1/hi/wales/979886.stm

Paedophile Priest has sentence cut <u>news.bbc.co.uk/1/hi/wales/1312603.stm</u>. Rome looks after its own

The Burning Bush Online Archive – Devious, duplicitous Rome! <u>www.ivanfos-</u> <u>ter.net/pdf/Jan0103.pdf</u>

¹⁴³ Babylon Mystery Religion, Ralph Woodrow, Ralph Woodrow Evangelistic Association, Riverside, California, 1981 98. The citation may be found here: WICWIKI Christianity – Standing tall above all others www.wicwiki.org.uk/mediawiki/index.php/PAPAL_IMMO-RALITY

¹⁴⁴ *The History of the New Testament Church, Volume I*, Dr. Peter S. Ruckman, Bible Baptist Bookstore, 1982 p 361 <u>store.kjv1611.org/</u>

¹⁴⁵ Original source *The New Covenant Times*, the Kingdom Foundation, March/April 1999. Currently unavailable. See <u>www.theguardian.com/uk/2000/jul/28/northernireland</u> *Maze emptied as terrorist prisoners walk free* for full details of the Good Friday Agreement prisoner release

¹⁴⁶ The Papal Visit weighed and found wanting, J. E. North, Focus Publications, Sussex, 1982 p 26. Source no longer available. From *Britain Under Siege* p 26: In 1859 Cardinal Manning wrote:

If ever there was a land in which work is to be done, and perhaps much to suffer, it is here. I shall not say too much, if I say that we have to SUBJUGATE and SUBDUE, to CONQUER and RULE, an imperial race. We have to do with a will which reigns throughout the world, as the will of old Rome reigned once. We have to BEND or BREAK that will which nations and kingdoms have found invincible and inflexible. Were heresy conquered in England, it would be conquered throughout the world. All its lines meet here, and therefore in England the Church of God must be gathered in its strength. See further Mr Whalley, Hansard, July 9 1875 in reply to Mr O'Conner Power api.parliament.uk/historic-hansard/commons/1875/jul/09/question-4